# Workplace Violence (WPV) in HealthCare - Resources

# Supplemental References and Resources for the 'Stop Violence in Health Care: A Toolkit for Prevention and Management of WPV' 2<sup>nd</sup> edition (2020) Available at: <u>www.oahhs.org/safety</u>

# Updated March 2025.

Provided by Lynda Enos, RN, BSN, MS, COHN-S, CPE Author of the Stop Violence in Health Care Toolkit HumanFit, LLC., www.humanfit@aol.com

# Stop Violence in Health Care

1



WPV in health care is an evolving topic and new WPV related research and resources are frequently published.

To assist the users of the *Stop Violence in Health Care Toolkit* stay updated, the following is a list of selected resources and references published in peer reviewed and other professional journals related to WPV in health care, that have been **published since** the release of the 2<sup>nd</sup> edition of the Toolkit in March 2020.

Note that some WPV related subjects may be listed in multiple topical sections of this document

## Contents

Resources from Professional Organizations	2
Regulatory Related	5
Active Shooter	6
Security	7
Prevalence of WPV	7
General	7
Nurses	9
Occupational Therapists	
Physicians	
Students	
Sexual Harassment	
Consequences of WPV for Caregivers	13
General	13
The Role of Management, Supervisory & Peer Support	15
Reporting WPV	16
Risk Factors for Violence, Patient Assessment for Risk of Violence and Communication	
Interventions - Meta Analysis of WPV Programs & Research Related to Individual Interventions and Case Studies	21
Training	24
Mental Health Environments	
Emergency Room	27
EMS	29
Pediatrics	
Ambulatory Care/Clinics	
Long Term Care	
Home Health	
Bullying	
Dementia Related	
WPV and Covid	
Clinician Wellbeing	
Miscellaneous	

# **Resources from Professional Organizations**

## Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality

• Jones et al. (Oct 2023) Addressing Workplace Violence and Creating a Safer Workplace. <u>https://psnet.ahrq.gov/perspective/addressing-workplace-violence-and-creating-safer-workplace#</u>

#### **American Academy of Nursing**

• *Meeting's Proceedings: Protecting our Caregivers: Comprehensive Strategies for Eliminating Workplace Violence.* (2024). <u>https://aannet.org/page/workplace-violence</u>

#### American Academy of Ambulatory Care Nurses

Workplace Safety Toolkit <u>https://www.aaacn.org/practice-resources/ambulatory-care-nursing/workplace-safety-toolkit#wst-contributors</u>

#### **American College of Physicians**

Keeping Healthcare Workers Safe Through Policy Initiatives.
 <u>https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC9872494/pdf/main.pdf</u>

#### **American Hospital Association**

WPV Toolkit and Resources

- Creating Safer Workplaces: A guide to mitigating violence in health care settings 2021. https://www.aha.org/websites/2015-12-17-workplace-violence-prevention-resources
- Fact Sheet: Workplace Violence and Intimidation, and the Need for a Federal Legislative Response (Sept 2023). <u>https://www.aha.org/system/files/media/file/2022/09/Fact-Sheet-Workplace-Violence-and-Intimidation-and-the-Need-for-a-Federal-Legislative-Response.pdf</u>
- Strengthening the Health Care Workforce: Strategies for Now, Near and Far Report. June 2022. <u>https://www.aha.org/guidesreports/2022-06-21-strengthening-health-care-workforce-strategies-now-near-and-far</u>

#### **American Nurses Association**

- Issue Brief: Reporting Incidents of Workplace Violence Effective Date: 2019 <u>https://www.nursingworld.org/~495349/globalassets/docs/ana/ethics/endabuse-issue-brief-final.pdf</u>
- Healthy Nurse Healthy Nations Year Four Highlights 2020-2021. American Nurses Association.
   <u>https://www.healthynursehealthynation.org/~4a9f4b/globalassets/hnhn-assets/all-images-view-with-media/about/hnhn-oct21-issue-921.pdf</u>
- Workplace Violence Position Statement <u>https://www.nursingworld.org/practice-policy/advocacy/state/workplace-violence2/</u>
- Incivility and Bullying. <a href="https://www.nursingworld.org/practice-policy/work-environment/violence-incivility-bullying/">https://www.nursingworld.org/practice-policy/work-environment/violence-incivility-bullying/</a>
- Three-Year Annual Assessment Survey: Nurses Need Increased Support from their Employer. American Nurses Foundation (2023). <u>https://www.nursingworld.org/~48fb88/contentassets/23d4f79cea6b4f67ae24714de11783e9/anf-impact-assessment-third-year\_v5.pdf</u>

#### American Organization for Nursing Leadership and the Emergency Nurses Association

• Toolkit for Mitigating Violence in the Workplace 2022.

https://www.aonl.org/system/files/media/file/2022/10/AONL-ENA\_workplace\_toolkit.pdf

Mitigating Workplace Violence AONL and ENA Guiding Principles 2022.

https://www.aonl.org/system/files/media/file/2020/12/Mitigating-Workplace-Violence.pdf

#### Australian Nursing & Midwifery Federation Victorian Branch

• 10-point plan to end violence and aggression A guide for health services (rev. 2022). <u>https://www.anmfvic.asn.au/~/media/files/anmf/ohs/ovaguide-10pp.pdf</u>

#### The Center for Health Design

• Behavioral & Mental Health Toolbox Free Resources 2021 <u>www.healthdesign.org.</u> https://www.healthdesign.org/behavioral-mental-health-toolbox

#### Crisis & Trauma Resource Institute. (2020).

• Crisis Response Checklist.

This checklist can help healthcare workers manage workplace violence and other critical incidents. Suggestions are provided for the initial and secondary phases and the evaluation and follow-up phase. https://ctrinstitute.com/resources/crisis-response-checklist/

#### **ECRI Institute**

 2018 Deep Dive Meeting Patients' Behavioral Health Needs in Acute Care. <u>https://www.ecri.org/Resources/Whitepapers\_and\_reports/PSO%20Deep%20Dives/DeepDive\_Behavior\_execbrief.</u> pdf

#### **Facility Design Institute**

• Design of Behavioral Health Crisis Units

https://fgiguidelines.org/resource/design-of-behavioral-health-crisis-units/

## International Association for Healthcare Security & Safety (IAHSS). http://www.iahss.org/

- IAHSS Healthcare Security Industry Guidelines 13<sup>th</sup> edition 2021. <u>https://www.iahss.org/page/hcsindustryguidelines</u>
- IAHSS Security Design Guidelines for Healthcare Facilities, 3rd Edition May 2020. https://www.iahss.org/page/designguidelines
- Scott Hill, C. P. P., & Burch, M. (2023). Effective Controls on Emergency Department Violence. https://iahssf.org/assets/2023-Effective-Controls-on-Emergency-Department-Violence.pdf
- Healthcare Crime Survey 2023. <u>https://iahssf.org/crime-surveys/2023-healthcare-crime-survey/</u>
- IAHSS Workplace Violence Prevention Bundle 2022 2<sup>nd</sup> edition. (Use code WPVJC for free access to the bundle.) <u>https://www.iahss.org/page/wpvpb</u> This webpage includes a link a "bundle" of resources specific to 19 select guidelines focused on supporting a healthcare workplace violence prevention program.
- Healthcare Active Assailant Planning and Response 2024 Toolkit <a href="https://www.iahss.org/news/news.asp?id=672170">https://www.iahss.org/news/news.asp?id=672170</a>

#### Institute for Healthcare Improvement

 Butkowski O, Duncan J, Martinez N. Preventing Verbal and Physical Violence across the Health Care Workforce. IHI Toolkit. Boston: Institute for Healthcare Improvement; 2022. <u>www.ihi.org</u>

#### The Joint Commission

Workplace Violence Prevention Resources

Numerous resources (authored by federal agencies, professional associations, and medical organizations) designed to help healthcare organizations create/update related policies and programs to meet the TJC new workplace violence requirements for accredited hospitals and critical access hospitals. *Note – the Oregon Stop Violence in Health Care Toolkit is listed as a resource*. <u>https://www.jointcommission.org/our-priorities/workforce-safety-and-well-being/resource-center/workplace-violence-prevention/</u>

Quick Safety Issue 63: Addressing intimate partner violence and helping to protect patients. <u>https://www.jointcommission.org/resources/news-and-multimedia/newsletters/newsletters/quick-safety/quick-safety-issue-63/</u>

- Infographic Take a Stand: No more violence to health care workers. <u>https://www.jointcommission.org/-/media/tjc/documents/resources/patient-safety-topics/sentinel-event/sea\_59\_wpv\_infographic\_3\_30\_18\_finalpdf.pdf</u>
- Sentinel Event Alert #59: Physical and verbal violence against health care workers Revised: June 18, 2021. Effective
  Jan. 1, 2022. <u>https://www.jointcommission.org/-/media/tjc/documents/resources/patient-safety-topics/sentinelevent/sea-wpv-tjc-requirements2.pdf</u>
- Quick Safety 24: Bullying has no place in health care (Updated June 2021). <u>https://www.jointcommission.org/resources/news-and-multimedia/newsletters/newsletters/quick-safety/quick-safety-issue-24-bullying-has-no-place-in-health-care/bullying-has-no-place-in-health-care/
  </u>
- Workplace Violence Prevention: Best-Practices in Health Care Environments. <u>https://www.jointcommission.org/-/media/tjc/documents/resources/patient-safety-topics/work-place-violence-prevention/vha\_wvpp\_lynn\_van\_male.pdf</u>
- Safety Systems for Individuals Served (SSIS) https://www.jointcommission.org/-/media/tjc/documents/standards/ps-chapters/2024/ps-cambehhealthcare\_siss\_20240229\_150643.pdf

#### National Academies of Sciences, Engineering, and Medicine.

 Managing, Reducing, and Preventing Fear of Violence: Proceedings of a Workshop—in Brief. (2020). https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/books/NBK566100/

#### The New York State Office of Mental Health.

• Patient Safety Standards, Materials and Systems Guidelines. 32nd Edition | July 31, 2024

Patient Safety Standards, Materials and Systems Guidelines – includes guidance for physical design and fixtures for behavioral health units <a href="https://www.omh.ny.gov/omhweb/patient\_safety\_standards/guide.pdf">https://www.omh.ny.gov/omhweb/patient\_safety\_standards/guide.pdf</a>

#### TRACIE Healthcare Emergency Preparedness Information Gateway

- Workplace Violence <u>https://asprtracie.hhs.gov/technical-resources/75/workplace-violence/60</u>
- Active Shooter and Explosives <u>https://asprtracie.hhs.gov/technical-resources/30/active-shooter-and-explosives/0</u>
- Strategies for Healthcare Workplace Violence Prevention: Risk Assessment and De-Escalation 2022. Speakers highlighted the issue, explained recent changes in The Joint Commission's workplace violence standards, and demonstrated some examples that can be used in real-world situations in this webinar. <a href="https://files.asprtracie.hhs.gov/documents/strategies-for-healthcare-workplace-violence-prevention-risk-assessment-and-de-escalation-webinar-ppt.pdf">https://files.asprtracie.hhs.gov/documents/strategies-for-healthcare-workplace-violence-prevention-risk-assessment-and-de-escalation-webinar-ppt.pdf</a>

# **Regulatory Related**

Arbury, S., Collins, N. R., Magtahas, J., Holmes, M., & Hodgson, M. J. (2022). OSHA workplace violence enforcement. *Journal of Occupational and Environmental Medicine*, *64*(4), e211-e216.

Arnetz, J. E. (2022). The Joint Commission's new and revised workplace violence prevention standards for hospitals: a major step forward toward improved quality and safety. *Joint Commission journal on quality and patient safety*, *48*(4), 241.

Beattie, J., Innes, K., Griffiths, D., & Morphet, J. (2020). Workplace violence: Examination of the tensions between duty of care, worker safety, and zero tolerance. *Health care management review*, *45*(3), E13-E22.

CMS threatens citations for workplace safety violations. <u>https://www.reliasmedia.com/articles/cms-threatens-citations-for-workplace-safety-violations</u>

Center for Clinical Standards and Quality. July 17, 2023. Ligature Risk and Assessment in Hospitals. Ref: QSO-23-19-Hospitals. QSO-23-19-Hospitals (cms.gov)

Center for Clinical Standards and Quality. Nov 28, 2022. Workplace Violence-Hospitals . Ref: QSO-23-04-Hospitals. <u>https://www.cms.gov/files/document/qso-23-04-hospitals.pdf</u>

Esposito, C & Sollazzo, L. (2021)Time-Limited Look at Whether the New York State Felony D Law or Workplace Violence Programs Mitigate Violence Against Nurses in the Healthcare Setting. *Journal of the New York State Nurses Association*, 48(1), 11-28.

Livanos, N. (2023). Keeping Healthcare Workers Safe Through Policy Initiatives. Journal of Nursing Regulation, 13(4), 81.

Sun, Z., Lin, S. X., & Wang, S. (2019). An economic model of optimal penalty for health care workplace violence. *INQUIRY: The Journal of Health Care Organization, Provision, and Financing*, *56*, 0046958019884190.

OSHA News release – Region 5, May 25, 2023. US Department of Labor investigation finds Columbus children's hospital exposed nurses, other employees to workplace violence. <u>https://www.osha.gov/news/newsreleases/region5/05252023</u>

OSHA News Release -Region 1, April 25, 2023. Judge finds UHS of Delaware Inc., UHS of Fuller Inc. denied workplace violence protections to Fuller Hospital employees. https://www.osha.gov/news/newsreleases/region1/04252023

## **Federal Legislation**

- April 18, 2023 Workplace Violence Prevention for Health Care and Social Service Workers Act (S. 1176 and H.R. 2663) https://www.baldwin.senate.gov/imo/media/doc/workplace violence prevention act of 2023 bill text.pdf
- H.R. 2584, the Safety from Violence for Healthcare Employees (SAVE) Act. https://bucshon.house.gov/uploadedfiles/bucsho\_010\_xml.pdf
- OSHA (May 2023) Workplace Violence SBREFA. The findings of a SBREFA Panel for a potential standard to address Prevention of Workplace Violence in Healthcare and Social Assistance sectors. <u>https://www.osha.gov/workplace-violence/sbrefa</u>

## The Joint Commission

- R3 Report. Requirement, Rationale, Reference. New and Revised Workplace Violence Prevention Requirements Hospitals. Issued 6/18/21 Effective Jan 2022. <a href="https://www.jointcommission.org/-/media/tjc/documents/standards/r3-reports/wpvp-r3-30">https://www.jointcommission.org/-/media/tjc/documents/standards/r3-reports/wpvp-r3-30</a> revised 06302021.pdf
- R3 Report. Workplace Violence Prevention in Behavioral Health Care and Human Services. Issue 42, December 20, 2023 Effective July 1, 2024. <u>https://www.jointcommission.org/-/media/tjc/documents/standards/r3-reports/wpv-for-bhc-r3.pdf</u>

- <u>R3 Report Newnatoina and Revised Restraint and Seclusion Requirements for Behavioral Health Care and Human</u> <u>Services Organizations</u>. Issue 44, June 20, 2024 Effective January 1, 2025. <u>https://www.jointcommission.org/-/media/tjc/documents/standards/r3-reports/wpv-for-bhc-r3.pdf</u>
- R3 Report. Workplace Violence Prevention in Home Care Settings. Issue 45 July 2, 2024. Effective January 1, 2025. <a href="https://www.jointcommission.org/-/media/tjc/documents/standards/r3-reports/2024/r3-wpv-for-ome\_accessible.pdf">https://www.jointcommission.org/-/media/tjc/documents/standards/r3-reports/2024/r3-wpv-for-ome\_accessible.pdf</a>

## <u>OSHA</u>

• Workplace Violence SBREFA. Prevention of Workplace Violence in Healthcare and Social Assistance SBREFA. Information and report about the SBREFA Panel for a potential standard to address Prevention of Workplace Violence in Healthcare and Social Assistance. <u>https://www.osha.gov/workplace-violence/sbrefa</u>

## TRACIE Healthcare Emergency Preparedness Information Gateway

• Strategies for Healthcare Workplace Violence Prevention: Risk Assessment and De-Escalation 2022.

Speakers highlighted the issue, explained recent changes in The Joint Commission's workplace violence standards, and demonstrated some examples that can be used in real-world situations in this webinar. https://files.asprtracie.hhs.gov/documents/strategies-for-healthcare-workplace-violence-prevention-risk-assessment-and-de-escalation-webinar-ppt.pdf

# **Active Shooter**

Giwa, A., Milsten, A., Vieira, D., Ogedegbe, C., Kelly, K., & Schwab, A. (2020). Should I Stay or Should I Go? A Bioethical Analysis of Healthcare Professionals' and Healthcare Institutions' Moral Obligations During Active Shooter Incidents in Hospitals—A Narrative Review of the Literature. *Journal of Law, Medicine & Ethics, 48*(2), 340-351.

Schwerin, D. L., Thurman, J., & Goldstein, S. (2018). Active shooter response. Stat Pearls. https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/books/NBK519067/

Wax, J. R., Cartin, A., Craig, W. Y., & Pinette, M. G. (2019). US acute care hospital shootings, 2012–2016: a content analysis study. *Work*, *64*(1), 77-83.

Zamore, E., Craig, W., Pinette, M. G., & Wax, J. R. (2022). Quantitative content analysis of physician-involved work-related firearm violence in the United States, 2008-2017. *Work*, (Preprint), 1-6.

## American Society for Safety Professionals (ASSP)

- Active Shooter Resources- Information and Training
   <u>https://www.assp.org/active-shooter-campaign</u>
- How to Develop & Implement an Active Shooter/Armed Assailant Plan <u>https://www.assp.org/docs/default-source/default-document-</u> <u>library/activeshooter\_infographic.pdf?sfvrsn=de73da47\_0</u>

## **Department of Homeland Security (DHS)**

- Active Shooter Preparedness <u>https://www.cisa.gov/active-shooter-preparedness</u>
- If you See Something Say Something Campaign <u>https://www.dhs.gov/see-something-say-something</u>

- Information for Human Resources or Security Personnel https://www.cisa.gov/human-resources-or-securityprofessional
- Employee Vigilance: Power of Hello <u>https://www.cisa.gov/employee-vigilance-power-hello</u>

## Federal Bureau of Investigations (FBI)

- Active Shooter events in the United States 2021
   https://www.fbi.gov/file-repository/active-shooter-incidents-in-the-us-2021-052422.pdf/view
- Active Shooter events in the United States 200-2019 <u>https://www.fbi.gov/file-repository/active-shooter-incidents-20-year-review-2000-2019-060121.pdf/view</u>

# Security

Anastasi, G., & Bambi, S. (2023). Utilization and effects of security technologies in mental health: A scoping review. *International journal of mental health nursing*, *32*(6), 1561-1582.

Conway, S. H., Emery, R. J., Pompeii, L. A., & Vellani, K. H. (2019). A refined model for estimating the industry-average number of security staff for hospitals. *Journal of Healthcare Protection Management*, *35*(1), 77-87.

Duff, J., Jeffries, L., Griffiths, J., Woollett, K., Carter, A., & Xu, H. (2024). Qualitative evaluation of a novel security role to reduce occupational violence in inpatient hospital settings. *Workplace Health & Safety*, 21650799241249187.

Kavanagh, K. T., Pontus, C., & Cormier, L. E. (2024). Healthcare violence and the potential promises and harms of artificial intelligence. *Journal of patient safety*, *20*(5), 307-313.

Muir-Cochrane, E., Muller, A., Fu, Y., & Oster, C. (2020). Role of security guards in Code Black events in medical and surgical settings: A retrospective chart audit. *Nursing & Health Sciences*, 22(3), 758-768.

Spencer, E. (2024). Using body-worn cameras in emergency departments: a pilot project. *Emergency Nurse*, 32(1).

# **Prevalence of WPV**

## <u>General</u>

Bhattacharjee, D. (2021). Workplace violence in healthcare: Towards a psychosocial perspective. *Aggression and violent behavior*, *58*, 101573.

Bittleman, D. (2020). My patient wants to kill me. *The Annals of Family Medicine*, 18(3), 269-271.

Braun, B. I., Hafiz, H., Singh, S., & Khan, M. M. (2021). Health care worker violent deaths in the workplace: a summary of cases from the National Violent Death Reporting System. *Workplace Health & Safety*, *69*(9), 435-441.

Brunero, S., Tetik, E., Donnelly, N., & Lamont, PhD, S. (2024). Understanding the Experience of Workplace Violence in Hospitals as Documented by Nursing Staff: Using the READ Approach. *Workplace Health & Safety*, 21650799241282343.

Carey, I., & Hendricks, K. (2023). Workplace violence against healthcare workers using nationally representative estimates of emergency department data, 2015–2017. *American journal of industrial medicine*, *66*(4), 333-338.

de Barbieri, I., Buja, A., Noble, H., & Strini, V. (2022). Violence and aggression prevention and management strategies in renal units: a survey after 10 years. *Journal of renal care*, *48*(3), 207-214.

Doucette, M. L., Surber, S. J., Bulzacchelli, M. T., Dal Santo, B. C., & Crifasi, C. K. (2022). Nonfatal Violence Involving Days Away From Work Following California's 2017 Workplace Violence Prevention in Health Care Safety Standard. *American journal of public health*, *112*(11), 1668-1675.

Hawkins, D., & Ghaziri, M. E. (2022). Violence in Health Care: Trends and disparities, bureau of labor statistics survey data of occupational injuries and illnesses, 2011–2017. *Workplace Health & Safety*, *70*(3), 136-147.

Hicks, S., & Stavropoulou, C. (2022). The Effect of Health Care Professional Disruptive Behavior on Patient Care: A Systematic Review. *Journal of Patient Safety*, *18*(2), 138-143.

Johanna, Z., Elin, V., Mats, H., Henrik, A., & Jonas, A. (2022). Nurses' experiences of encountering patients with mental illness in prehospital emergency care–a qualitative interview study. *BMC nursing*, *21*(1), 1-10.

Li, Y. L., Li, R. Q., Qiu, D., & Xiao, S. Y. (2020). Prevalence of workplace physical violence against health care professionals by patients and visitors: a systematic review and meta-analysis. *International journal of environmental research and public health*, *17*(1), 299.

Lin, D. M., Lane-Fall, M. B., Lea, J. A., Reede, L. J., Gomes, B. D., Xia, Y., ... & Miller, T. R. (2024). Workplace Violence Pervasiveness in the Perioperative Environment: A Multiprofessional Survey. *The Joint Commission Journal on Quality and Patient Safety*, *50*(11), 764-774.

Liu, J., Gan, Y., Jiang, H., Li, L., Dwyer, R., Lu, K., ... & Lu, Z. (2019). Prevalence of workplace violence against healthcare workers: a systematic review and meta-analysis. *Occupational and environmental medicine*, *76*(12), 927-937.

Lombardi, B., Jensen, T., Galloway, E., & Fraher, E. (2024). Trends in workplace violence for health care occupations and facilities over the last 10 years. *Health affairs scholar*, *2*(12), qxae134.

Matta, M. G., Gupta, S., Alfonso, J. M., Carrero, M. C., Agahari, I., Sabouret, P., ... & Garcia-Zamora, S. (2024). Prevalence and patterns of gender disparity in workplace violence among healthcare workers during the COVID-19 pandemic: a systematic review and meta-analysis. *Public health*, 235, 76-83.

Mento, C., Silvestri, M.C., Bruno, A., Muscatello, M.R.A., Cedro, C., Pandolfo, G., & Zoccali, R.A. (2020). Workplace violence against healthcare professionals: A systematic review. Aggression and Violent Behavior, 51(101381.

Otachi, J. K., Robertson, H., & Okoli, C. T. (2022). Factors associated with workplace violence among healthcare workers in an academic medical center. *Perspectives in psychiatric care*.

Pinkhasov, A., Filangieri, C., Rzeszut, M., Wilkenfeld, M., Akerman, M., Divers, J., ... & Peltier, M. R. (2022). The effect of abuse and mistreatment on healthcare providers (TEAM): a survey assessing the prevalence of aggression from patients and their families and its impact. *Journal of Occupational and Environmental Medicine*, *64*(3), e136-e144.

Rauscher, K., Casteel, C., Davis, J., Myers, D., & Peek-Asa, C. (2023). Prevalence of workplace violence against young workers in the United States. *American journal of industrial medicine*.

Richardson Velmans, S., Joseph, C., Wood, L., & Billings, J. (2023). A systematic review and thematic synthesis of inpatient nursing staff experiences of working with high-risk patient behaviours. *Journal of Psychiatric and Mental Health Nursing*.

Saha, S., & Ingram, M. (2023). *Premier survey reveals key insights on workplace violence incidents in healthcare*. <u>https://premierinc.com/newsroom/blog/premier-survey-reveals-key-insights-on-workplace-violence-incidents-in-healthcare</u>

Sammut, D., Lees-Deutsch, L., Ali, L., Imasogie, J., Nkundo, L., & Hallett, N. (2024). Exploring staff experiences and perceptions of patient-perpetrated violence in hospital settings: A qualitative study. *Journal of clinical nursing*.

Schaller, A., Klas, T., Gernert, M., & Steinbeißer, K. (2021). Health problems and violence experiences of nurses working in acute care hospitals, long-term care facilities, and home-based long-term care in Germany: A systematic review. *PloS one*, *16*(11), e0260050.

Sherrill, A. (2016). Workplace Safety and Health: Additional Efforts Needed to Help Protect Health Care Workers from Workplace Violence.

Somes, J. (2023). Agitated geriatric patients and violence in the workplace. Journal of emergency nursing, 49(3), 320-325.

Squire, M., & Hessler, K. (2023). patient-to-nurse violence during one-to-one assignments: a silent epidemic. *AJN*, *American Journal of Nursing*, *123*(2), 28-35.

Sridharan, V., Leung, K. C., & Peisah, C. (2024). Understanding aggression displayed by patients and families towards intensive care staff: A systematic review. *Journal of the Intensive Care Society*, 17511437241231707.

Tuominen, J., Tölli, S., & Häggman-Laitila, A. (2023). Violence by clients and patients against social and healthcare staff– An integrative review of staff's well-being at work, implementation of work and leaders' activities. *Journal of clinical nursing*, *32*(13-14), 3173-3184.

Van Den Bos, J., Creten, N., Davenport, S., & Roberts, M. (2017). Cost of community violence to hospitals and health systems. *American Hospital Association*.

Vento, S., Cainelli, F., & Vallone, A. (2020). Violence against healthcare workers: a worldwide phenomenon with serious consequences. *Frontiers in public health*, *8*, 570459.

Watson, A., Jafari, M., & Seifi, A. (2020). The persistent pandemic of violence against health care workers. *The American Journal of Managed Care*, *26*(12), e377-e379

Wax, J. R., Cartin, A., Craig, W. Y., & Pinette, M. G. (2019). US acute care hospital shootings, 2012–2016: a content analysis study. *Work*, *64*(1), 77-83.

Wyatt, R., Anderson-Drevs, K., & Van Male, L. M. (2016). Workplace violence in health care: a critical issue with a promising solution. *Jama*, *316*(10), 1037-1038.

Yusoff, H. M., Ahmad, H., Ismail, H., Reffin, N., Chan, D., Kusnin, F., ... & Rahman, M. A. (2023). Contemporary evidence of workplace violence against the primary healthcare workforce worldwide: a systematic review. *Human resources for health*, *21*(1), 82.

Zamore, E., Craig, W., Pinette, M. G., & Wax, J. R. (2022). Quantitative content analysis of physician-involved work-related firearm violence in the United States, 2008-2017. *Work*, (Preprint), 1-6.

## <u>Nurses</u>

Chesire, D. J., McIntosh, A., Hendrickson, S., Jones, P., & McIntosh, M. (2022). Dimensions of hospital workplace violence: Patient violence towards the healthcare team. *Journal of clinical nursing*, *31*(11-12), 1662-1668. March 2025

Endler, M., Ramirez-Negrin, A., Sohail, R., & FIGO Committee on Women Facing Crises. (2025). A silent pandemic of violence against providers in obstetrics and gynecology: A mixed-methods study based on a global survey. *International Journal of Gynecology & Obstetrics*, *168*(1), 377-386.

Fang, I. L., Hsu, M. C., & Ouyang, W. C. (2023). Lived Experience of Violence Perpetrated by Treated Patients and Their Visitors in Intensive Care Units: A Qualitative Study of Nurses. *The Journal of Nursing Research: JNR*.

Havaei, F. (2021). Does the Type of Exposure to Workplace Violence Matter to Nurses' Mental Health? Healthcare 2021, 9, 41.

Hills, S., Crawford, K., Lam, L., & Hills, D. (2021). The way we do things around here. A qualitative study of the workplace aggression experiences of Victorian nurses, midwives and care personnel. *Collegian*, 28(1), 18-26.

Hong, S., Kim, H., & Cha, M. (2022). Comparing workplace violence among nurses and other professionals using online articles: A social network analysis. *Journal of Nursing Management*.

Kafle, S., Paudel, S., Thapaliya, A., & Acharya, R. (2022). Workplace violence against nurses: a narrative review. *Journal of clinical and translational research*, 8(5), 421.

Orewa, G. N., Ajaiyeoba, I. O., Edevbie, N., & White, M. L. (2025). Workplace violence: Insights from nurses' lived experiences. *Health Care Management Review*, *50*(1), 44-54.

## **Occupational Therapists**

Daniels, J. K., & Anadria, D. (2019). Experiencing and witnessing patient violence-an occupational risk for outpatient therapists?. *Psychiatric quarterly*, *90*, 533-541.

Scanlon, E., & Piersol, C. V. (2021). Workplace aggression: Exploring experiences of occupational therapy practitioners in healthcare settings. *Occupational therapy in health care*, *35*(1), 105-121.

## **Physicians**

Kumari, A., Kaur, T., Ranjan, P., et al. (2020). Workplace Violence Against Doctors: Characteristics, Risk Factors, and Mitigation Strategies. Journal of Postgraduate Medicine. 66(3): 149-154.

Tian, K., Xiao, X., Zeng, R., Xia, W., Feng, J., Gan, Y., & Zhou, Y. (2022). Prevalence of workplace violence against general practitioners: A systematic review and meta-analysis. *The International Journal of Health Planning and Management*, *37*(3), 1238-1251.

## **Students**

Abdelaziz, E. M., & Abu-Snieneh, H. M. (2022). The impact of bullying on the mental health and academic achievement of nursing students. *Perspectives in psychiatric care*, *58*(2), 623-634.

Aksoy, F., Bayram, S. B., & Özsaban, A. (2024). Nursing students' exposure to violence in clinical practice and violence management competence levels. *Nurse education today*, *139*, 106237.

Al-hamzat, S., Rababah, J. A., & Al-Hammouri, M. M. (2024). Examining the Effectiveness of a Simulation Training Program on Enhancing Nursing Students' Efficacy About Managing Nonphysical Violence. *Clinical Simulation in Nursing*, *93*, 101577.

Alshawush, K., Hallett, N., & Bradbury-Jones, C. (2022). The impact of transition programmes on workplace bullying, violence, stress and resilience for students and new graduate nurses: A scoping review. *Journal of clinical nursing*, *31*(17-18), 2398-2417.

Cao, J., Sun, H., Zhou, Y., Yang, A., Zhuang, X., & Liu, J. (2023). Nursing students' experiences of workplace violence based on the perspective of gender differences: a phenomenological study. *BMC nursing*, *22*(1), 387.

Choi, J. S., & Kim, K. Y. (2024, August). Factors Affecting Nursing Students' Perception of Workplace Bullying. In *Healthcare* (Vol. 12, No. 16, p. 1597). MDPI.

Clark, C. M., Landis, T. T., & Barbosa-Leiker, C. (2021). National study on faculty and administrators' perceptions of civility and incivility in nursing education. *Nurse Educator*, *46*(5), 276-283.

Clark, C. M. (2024). Using Cognitive Rehearsal to Address Faculty Incivility in Nursing Academe. *Nurse Educator*, 10-1097.

Dafny, H. A., McCloud, C., Pearson, V., Brown, S., Phillips, C., Waheed, N., ... & Champion, S. (2023). Nursing students' experience of workplace violence in clinical practice: A qualitative systematic review. *Journal of clinical nursing*.

Dafny, H. A., McCloud, C., Champion, S., Pearson, V., Hines, S., Brown, S., ... & Johnston, S. (2024). Interventions to prevent or manage workplace violence against student nurses during clinical placement: a systematic review protocol. *JBI evidence synthesis*, *22*(5), 881-888.

Fernández-Gutiérrez, L., & Mosteiro-Díaz, M. P. (2021). Bullying in nursing students: A integrative literature review. *International journal of mental health nursing*, *30*(4), 821-833.

Foreman, R. A. (2023). Lateral incivility, nursing students, and the academic environment: A modified epidemiological triangle. *Nurse Education Today*, 105883.

Gigli, K. H., & Gonzalez, J. D. (2024). Experiences of workplace violence in graduate nursing clinical education. *Nurse educator*, 10-1097.

Hallett, N., Wagstaff, C., & Barlow, T. (2021). Nursing students' experiences of violence and aggression: a mixed-methods study. *Nurse education today*, *105*, 105024.

Hunter, E. J., Eades, C. E., & Evans, J. M. (2022). Violence experienced by undergraduate nursing students during clinical placements: An online survey at a Scottish University. *Nurse education in practice*, *61*, 103323.

Ibrahim, M. E., El-Zoghby, S. M., Zaghloul, N. M., Shehata, S. A., & Farghaly, R. M. (2024). Musculoskeletal pain among medical residents: role of workplace safety climate and sexual harassment. *BMC musculoskeletal disorders*, *25*(1), 167.

Johnston, S., Fox, A., Patterson, S., Jones, R., Dafny, H., Pich, J., & Duff, J. (2024). Australian nursing students' experiences of workplace violence during clinical placement: A cross-sectional study. *Journal of Advanced Nursing*.

Lickiewicz, J., Lorenz, L. S., & Kolb, B. (2024, April). Photovoice in Aggression Management Training for Medical and Nursing Students—A Pilot Study. In *Healthcare* (Vol. 12, No. 9, p. 873). MDPI.

Luck, L., Kaczorowski, K., White, M., Dickens, G., & McDermid, F. (2024). Medical and surgical nurses' experiences of modifying and implementing contextually suitable Safewards interventions into medical and surgical hospital wards. *Journal of Advanced Nursing*.

See, J., Van Deusen, R., Claxton, R., Shenai, N., Rothenberger, S. D., & Donovan, A. K. (2024). CALMER conflict: a novel curriculum for graduating medical students to manage and defuse patient-provider conflict. Journal of general internal medicine, 1-5.

Serpici, A. Y. Ş. E., Doğan, D. A., & Ayik, D. B. (2024). Relationship between nursing students' personality traits and competence in workplace violence management. *Archives of Psychiatric Nursing*, *53*, 17-23.

Sharif-Nia, H., Marôco, J., Rahmatpour, P., Allen, K. A., Kaveh, O., & Hoseinzadeh, E. (2023). Bullying behaviors and intention to drop-out among nursing students: the mediation roles of sense of belonging and major satisfaction. *BMC nursing*, *22*(1), 417.

Smith, E., Gullick, J., Perez, D., & Einboden, R. (2023). A peek behind the curtain: An integrative review of sexual harassment of nursing students on clinical placement. *Journal of clinical nursing*, *32*(5-6), 666-687.

Stalter, A. M., Phillips, J. M., Ruggiero, J. S., Wiggs, C. M., Brodhead, J., & Swanson, K. (2019). Systems perspective for incivility in academia: An integrative review. *Nursing Education Perspectives*, *40*(3), 144–150. <u>https://doi.org/10.1097/01.NEP.00000000000466</u>

Thupayagale-Tshweneagae, G., Dithole, K. S., Baratedi, W. M., & Raditloko, S. (2020). Nurse educator academic incivility: A qualitative descriptive study. *International Nursing Review*, *67*(3), 411–419. https://doi.org/10.1111/inr.12610

Walsh, C., England, A., Young, R., Moore, N., Hutch, A., Dennan, S., ... & McEntee, M. (2024). The prevalence of harassment of diagnostic radiography and radiation therapy students whilst on clinical placement in the Republic of Ireland. *Medical Teacher*, *46*(8), 1077-1083.

Warshawski, S. (2021). Workplace violence directed at nursing and medical students-What can students tell us about it?. *Journal of Professional Nursing*, *37*(6), 1110-1118.

Yang, L., Zeng, Q., Wang, Y., Zhou, J., & Zeng, Y. (2024). Why nursing students do not report workplace bullying during clinical practice: A mixed methods systematic review. *Nurse education today*, 106341.

## Sexual Harassment

Boissonnault, J. S., Cambier, Z., Hetzel, S. J., & Plack, M. M. (2017). Prevalence and risk of inappropriate sexual behavior of patients toward physical therapist clinicians and students in the United States. *Physical therapy*, *97*(11), 1084-1093.

Gabay, G., & Shafran Tikva, S. (2020). Sexual harassment of nurses by patients and missed nursing care—A hidden population study. *Journal of Nursing Management*, *28*(8), 1881-1887.

Kahsay, W. G., Negarandeh, R., Dehghan Nayeri, N., & Hasanpour, M. (2020). Sexual harassment against female nurses: a systematic review. *BMC nursing*, *19*(1), 1-12.

McClain, T. S., Kammer-Kerwick, M., Wood, L., Temple, J. R., & Busch-Armendariz, N. (2021). Sexual harassment among medical students: prevalence, prediction, and correlated outcomes. *Workplace Health & Safety*, *69*(6), 257-267.

Smidt, A. M., Adams-Clark, A. A., & Freyd, J. J. (2023). Institutional courage buffers against institutional betrayal, protects employee health, and fosters organizational commitment following workplace sexual harassment. *Plos one*, *18*(1), e0278830.

Smith, E., Gullick, J., Perez, D., & Einboden, R. (2023). A peek behind the curtain: An integrative review of sexual harassment of nursing students on clinical placement. *Journal of clinical nursing*, *32*(5-6), 666-687. March 2025

Uslu, E., & Buldukoglu, K. (2021). The gray zone of patient-nurse communication: Inappropriate sexual behavior. *Perspectives in Psychiatric Care*, *57*(2), 948-952.

# **Consequences of WPV for Caregivers**

## **General**

Andersen, L. H., & Christensen, T. B. (2022). Taking Prior Sick Leave Patterns Into Account When Estimating Health Consequences of Violence on the Job. *Workplace Health & Safety*, 21650799221096994.

Arnetz, J. E., Baker, N., Arble, E., & Arnetz, B. B. (2025). Workplace violence, work-related exhaustion, and workplace cognitive failure among nurses: A cross-sectional study. *Journal of advanced nursing*, *81*(1), 271-285.

Caillier, J. G. (2021). The impact of workplace aggression on employee satisfaction with job stress, meaningfulness of work, and turnover intentions. *Public Personnel Management*, *50*(2), 159-182.

Chan, C. C., Faherty, C., Rahman, N., Murrough, J. W., Benn, E. K., Clark, U., ... & Peccoralo, L. A. (2024). Suicidal ideation among non-physician hospital system staff: Prevalence and workplace correlates. *Journal of affective disorders*, *362*, 638-644.

Chang, Y. P., Lee, D. C., Lee, Y. H., & Chiu, M. H. (2024). Nurses' perceived health and occupational burnout: a focus on sleep quality, workplace violence, and organizational culture. *International nursing review*.

Duan, X., Ni, X., Shi, L., Zhang, L., Ye, Y., Mu, H., ... & Wang, Y. (2019). The impact of workplace violence on job satisfaction, job burnout, and turnover intention: the mediating role of social support. *Health and quality of life outcomes*, *17*(1), 1-10.

Foli, K. J., Zhang, L., & Reddick, B. (2021). Predictors of substance use in registered nurses: The role of psychological trauma. *Western journal of nursing research*, *43*(11), 1023-1033.

Giusti, E. M., Veronesi, G., Forest, H., Ghelli, M., Persechino, B., Borchini, R., ... & Ferrario, M. M. (2024). Role of turnover, downsizing, overtime and night shifts on workplace violence against healthcare workers: a seven-year ecological study. *BMC Public Health*, *24*(1), 1-9.

Ham, E., Ricciardelli, R., Rodrigues, N. C., Hilton, N. Z., & Seto, M. C. (2021). Beyond workplace violence: Direct and vicarious trauma among psychiatric hospital workers. A qualitative study. *Journal of Nursing Management*.

Kim, S., Kitzmiller, R., Baernholdt, M., Lynn, M. R., & Jones, C. B. (2022). Patient safety culture: the impact on workplace violence and health worker burnout. *Workplace Health & Safety*, 21650799221126364.

Konttila, J., Holopainen, A., Kyngäs, H., & Pesonen, H. M. (2021). Background characteristics and exposure to violence predict well-being at work among psychiatric outpatient nurses. *Archives of psychiatric nursing*, *35*(2), 223-231.

Labrague, L. J., Al Sabei, S., Al Rawajfah, O., AbuAlRub, R., & Burney, I. (2022). Interprofessional collaboration as a mediator in the relationship between nurse work environment, patient safety outcomes and job satisfaction among nurses. *Journal of Nursing Management*, *30*(1), 268-278.

Lam, C. (2021). The Link between Patients' Aggressive Communication and Nurses' Emotional Health Outcomes. *Health communication*, 1-8.

Lamothe, J., Boyer, R., & Guay, S. (2021). A longitudinal analysis of psychological distress among healthcare workers following patient violence. *Canadian Journal of Behavioural Science/Revue canadienne des sciences du comportement*, *53*(1), 48.

Liang, L., Wang, Z., Hu, Y., Yuan, T., Fei, J., & Mei, S. Does workplace violence affect healthcare workers' turnover intention?. *Japan journal of nursing science: JJNS*, e12543.

Liyanage, S., Addison, S., Ham, E., & Hilton, N. Z. (2022). Workplace interventions to prevent or reduce post-traumatic stress disorder and symptoms among hospital nurses: a scoping review. *Journal of Clinical Nursing*, *31*(11-12), 1477-1487.

Luo, Y., Zhang, M., Yu, S., Guan, X., Zhong, T., Wu, Q., & Li, Y. (2024). The impact of psychological violence in the workplace on turnover intention of clinical nurses: the mediating role of job satisfaction. *BMC nursing*, *23*(1), 844.

Mehtap, Ö., & Kökalan, Ö. (2024). The effects of workplace violence and work-to-family conflict on job engagement of nurses: A multilevel longitudinal research. *WORK*, 10519815241298115.

Meyer, H. A., Kiydal, D., Siefert, K., Clark, E., Dondi, A. C., Abu-Alhaija, D. M., ... & Gillespie, G. L. (2024). Workplace Violence and Worker Well-Being: A Preliminary Cross-Sectional Study. *Journal of Gerontological Nursing*, *50*(11), 44-52.

Pien, L. C., Cheng, Y., Lee, F. C., & Cheng, W. J. (2024). The effect of multiple types of workplace violence on burnout risk, sleep quality, and leaving intention among nurses. *Annals of Work Exposures and Health*, wxae052.

Pryor, S., Hanson, A., Chan, J., Brunner, H., Letourneau, R., & Menon, U. (2025). Nurse Well-Being and Patient-Specific Outcomes: A Scoping Review. *Journal of Nursing Care Quality*, *40*(1), 46-55.

Tiryaki Sen, H., Sahin, S., & Polat, N. (2024). A Cross-Sectional Study Exploring the Impact of Violence on Healthcare Employees' Work Engagement and Meaningful Work. *Journal of Advanced Nursing*, *80*(11), 4699-4711.

Warshawski, S., Amit Aharon, A., & Itzhaki, M. (2022). The public's mixed emotional responses to violence directed at nurses: A mixed methods study. *Journal of Clinical Nursing*, *31*(15-16), 2208-2218.

Wells, S. K. (2024). The Impact of Nurses' Work Environment on Mental Health and Suicide. Critical care nurse, 44(3), 6-8.

Wizner, K., Cunningham, K., Gaspar, F. W., Dewa, C. S., & Grunert, B. (2022). Occupational posttraumatic stress disorder and workplace violence in workers' compensation claims. *Journal of Traumatic Stress*.

Wizner, K., Journeay, W. S., Jolivet, D., & Ahle, J. (2024). Mild traumatic brain injury caused by workplace violence in a US workers' compensation system. *Occupational and environmental medicine*, *81*(8), 395-399.

Yaranon, P., O'Shea, D., Bosak, J., & Sommovigo, V. (2024). Insider versus outsider workplace mistreatment and their impact on affective ill-being in healthcare professionals: Can personal resources act as buffers?. *Journal of Advanced Nursing*.

Zhang, Y., ElGhaziri, M., Siddique, S., Gore, R., Kurowski, A., Nobrega, S., & Punnett, L. (2021). Emotional Labor and Depressive Symptoms Among Healthcare Workers: The Role of Sleep. *Workplace health & safety*, *69*(8), 383-393.

Zychla, L., & Given, M. R. (2024). An MRT workforce shortage is no laughing matter. *Journal of Medical Imaging and Radiation Sciences*, *55*(4), 101419.

#### The Role of Management, Supervisory & Peer Support

Andersen, L. P., Elklit, A., & Pihl-Thingvad, J. (2021). Work-related violence and organizational commitment among health care workers: does supervisor's support make a difference?. *International archives of occupational and environmental health*, *94*(7), 1645-1657.

Arnetz, J. E., Baker, N., Arble, E., & Arnetz, B. B. (2024). Workplace violence, work-related exhaustion, and workplace cognitive failure among nurses: A cross-sectional study. *Journal of Advanced Nursing*Bakes-Denman, L., Mansfield, Y., & Meehan, T. (2021). Supporting mental health staff following exposure to occupational violence–staff perceptions of 'peer'support. *International Journal of Mental Health Nursing*, *30*(1), 158-166.

Busch, I. M., Scott, S. D., Connors, C., Story, A. R., Acharya, B., & Wu, A. W. (2021). The role of institution-based peer support for health care workers emotionally affected by workplace violence. *The Joint Commission Journal on Quality and Patient Safety*, *47*(3), 146-156.

Chen, F. L., Hou, W. H., Chen, J. H., Tung, T. H., & Wu, J. C. (2022, March). Organizational Factors Are Key Predictors of Physicians' Confidence in Handling Workplace Violence. In *Healthcare* (Vol. 10, No. 4, p. 637). MDPI.

Dafny, H. A., & Muller, A. (2021). Australian nurses' suggestions for the management of violence in the workplace: 'The people who make the policy are not the people on the floor'. *Journal of Nursing Management*.

Dafny, H. A., Chamberlain, D., Parry, Y. K., & Beccaria, G. (2022). Do nurses receive any support following incidents of workplace violence? A qualitative study. *Journal of Nursing Management*.

Draus, C., Mianecki, T. B., Musgrove, H., Bastien, D. J., Greggs, D., Halash, C., ... & Mackenzie, W. (2022). Perceptions of Nurses Who Are Second Victims in a Hospital Setting. *Journal of nursing care quality*, *37*(2), 110-116.

Hessler, K. L., Anderson, G., Scannell, M., McNair, B., & Becker, M. (2024). Leadership strategies to increase psychological safety of nurses: a longitudinal study. *Quality Management in Healthcare*, 10-1097.

Hesgrove, B., Zebrak, K., Yount, N., Sorra, J., & Ginsberg, C. (2024). Associations between patient safety culture and workplace safety culture in hospital settings. *BMC Health Services Research*, 24(1), 568.

Hines-Stellisch, K., Gawlik, K. S., Teall, A. M., & Tucker, S. (2024). Implementation of Coaching to Address Burnout in Emergency Clinicians. *Journal of Emergency Nursing*, *50*(5), 601-609.

Klatt, T. E., Sachs, J. F., Huang, C. C., & Pilarski, A. M. (2021). Building a Program of Expanded Peer Support for the Entire Health Care Team: No One Left Behind. *The Joint Commission Journal on Quality and Patient Safety*, *47*(12), 759-767.

Magnavita, N., & Meraglia, I. (2024). Poor Work Ability Is Associated with Workplace Violence in Nurses: A Two-Wave Panel Data Analysis. *International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health*, *21*(9), 1118.

Nam, S. H., Lee, D. W., Seo, H. Y., Hong, Y. C., Yun, J. Y., Cho, S. J., & Lee, N. (2021). Empathy With Patients and Post-Traumatic Stress Response in Verbally Abused Healthcare Workers. *Psychiatry Investigation*, *18*(8), 770.

Nigam, J. A. (2023). Vital signs: health worker–perceived working conditions and symptoms of poor mental health— Quality of Worklife Survey, United States, 2018–2022. *MMWR. Morbidity and Mortality Weekly Report, 72*.

Tellson, A., Huddleston, P., Powell, K., Tolentino, R., Cassity, W., Weller, S., & Vaughn, B. (2024). Beyond the Basics: Partnerships and Innovations for Empowerment to Address Workplace Violence, a Call to Action. *Nursing Administration Quarterly*, *48*(4), 297-304. Yesildag, A. Y., Turan Kurtaran, A., & Sevim, F. Assessing workplace well-being in healthcare: The violence-prevention climate and its relationship with workplace happiness. *International Nursing Review*.

Zhang, S. E., Wang, J., Liu, L., Meng, D. X., Wang, H. N., Zhao, X., ... & Sun, T. (2021). Does abusive supervision lead nurses to suffer from workplace violence? A cross-sectional study. *Journal of Nursing Management*.

# **Reporting WPV**

Brunero, S., Tetik, E., Donnelly, N., & Lamont, PhD, S. (2024). Understanding the Experience of Workplace Violence in Hospitals as Documented by Nursing Staff: Using the READ Approach. *Workplace Health & Safety*, 21650799241282343.

Byon, H. D., Harris, C., Crandall, M., Song, J., & Topaz, M. (2023). Identifying Type II workplace violence from clinical notes using natural language processing. *Workplace Health & Safety*, *71*(10), 484-490.

Christensen, S. S., & Wilson, B. L. (2022). Why nurses do not report patient aggression: A review and appraisal of the literature. *Journal of Nursing Management*.

Christensen, S. S., Wilson, B. L., Cummins, M. R., Eaton, J., Iacob, E., & Hansen, S. D. (2024). Exploring nurses' emotional reactions to and reporting of patient-on-nurse workplace violence: A mixed-methods study. *International Journal of Nursing Studies*, *153*, 104724.

Copeland, D., & Arnold, S. (2021). The moral dilemma of interpreting workplace violence. *Nursing inquiry*, 28(4), e12406.

Dafny, H. A., & Beccaria, G. (2020). I do not even tell my partner: Nurses' perceptions of verbal and physical violence against nurses working in a regional hospital. *Journal of clinical nursing*, *29*(17-18), 3336-3348.

Foster, M., Adapa, K., Soloway, A., Francki, J., Stokes, S., & Mazur, L. (2022). Electronic Reporting of Workplace Violence Incidents: Improving the Usability, and Optimizing Healthcare Workers' Cognitive Workload, and Performance. *Studies in health technology and informatics*, *290*, 400-404.

Huang, L., Chang, H., Peng, X., Zhang, F., Mo, B., & Liu, Y. (2022). Formally reporting incidents of workplace violence among nurses: A scoping review. *Journal of Nursing Management*.

Hutton, S., Vance, K., Loftus, S. M., Roth, G., & Van Male, L. M. (2023). National Development and Implementation of a Democratized Disruptive Behavior Reporting System in Health Care. *Journal of Medical Systems*, *47*(1), 104.

Iennaco, J. D., Molle, E., Allegra, M., Depukat, D., & Parkosewich, J. (2024). The Aggressive Incidents in Medical Settings (AIMS) study: advancing measurement to promote prevention of workplace violence. *The Joint Commission Journal on Quality and Patient Safety*, *50*(3), 166-176.

Kim, S., Lynn, M. R., Baernholdt, M., Kitzmiller, R., & Jones, C. B. (2023). How does workplace violence–reporting culture affect workplace violence, nurse burnout, and patient safety?. *Journal of nursing care quality*, *38*(1), 11-18.

Koskiniemi, S., Syyrilä, T., Hämeen-Anttila, K., Manias, E., & Härkänen, M. (2024). Health professionals' perceptions of the development needs of incident reporting software: A qualitative systematic review. *Journal of Advanced Nursing*.

Lee, J., Havaei, F., Hirani, S., & Adhami, N. (2024). Nurses' Workplace Violence Reporting Behaviours and Reasons for Not Formally Reporting: A Cross-Sectional Secondary Analysis. *Journal of Clinical Nursing*.

Lyver, B., Gorla, J., Schulz-Quach, C., Anderson, M., Singh, B., Hanagan, T., ... & Sethi, R. (2024). Identifying quality indicators to measure workplace violence in healthcare settings: a rapid review. *BMC emergency medicine*, *24*(1), 29.

Odes, R., Chapman, S., Ackerman, S., Harrison, R., & Hong, O. (2022). Differences in Hospitals' Workplace Violence Incident Reporting Practices: A Mixed Methods Study. *Policy, Politics, & Nursing Practice, 23*(2), 98-108.

Phillips, J. P. (2024). Measuring Healthcare Workplace Violence in Real Time. *Joint Commission journal on quality and patient safety*, *50*(3), 164-165.

Pompeii, L. A., Schoenfisch, A., Lipscomb, H. J., Dement, J. M., Smith, C. D., & Conway, S. H. (2016). Hospital workers bypass traditional occupational injury reporting systems when reporting patient and visitor perpetrated (type II) violence. *American journal of industrial medicine*, *59*(10), 853-865.

Rodrigues, N. C., Ham, E., Kirsh, B., Seto, M. C., & Hilton, N. Z. (2021). Mental health workers' experiences of support and help-seeking following workplace violence: A qualitative study. *Nursing & Health Sciences*, 23(2), 381-388.

Scallan, R. M., Speciale, A., Kasen, K. E., Martin, D., Do Byon, H., & Quatrara, B. A. (2024). A Quality Improvement Project to Enhance Emergency Nurse Workplace Violence Reporting. *Journal of Emergency Nursing*, *50*(5), 591-600.

Spencer, C., Sitarz, J., Fouse, J., & DeSanto, K. (2023). Nurses' rationale for underreporting of patient and visitor perpetrated workplace violence: a systematic review. *BMC nursing*, *22*(1), 134.

Waltzman, M., Ozonoff, A., Fournier, K. A., Welcher, J., Milliren, C., Landschaft, A., ... & Kimia, A. A. (2024). Surveillance of health care-associated violence using natural language processing. *Pediatrics*, *154*(2).

Whalen, M., Bradley, M., Hanson, G. C., Maliszewski, B., & Pandian, V. (2024). Exploring perceptions of reporting violence against healthcare workers in the emergency department: a qualitative study. *International emergency nursing*, *76*, 101500.

# Risk Factors for Violence, Patient Assessment for Risk of Violence and Communication

Adams, K., Hashim, I., Rajwani, A., & Montalvo, C. (2024). Screening and intervention to prevent violence against health professionals from hospitalized patients: a pilot study. *The Joint Commission Journal on Quality and Patient Safety*.

Amunrud, A., & Bjorklund, P. (2022). Implementation of the dynamic appraisal of situational aggression in inpatient mental health. *Perspectives in Psychiatric Care*, *58*(3), 1153-1159.

Anderson, K. K., & Jenson, C. E. (2019). Violence risk–assessment screening tools for acute care mental health settings: Literature review. *Archives of psychiatric nursing*, *33*(1), 112-119.

Balducci, C., Rafanelli, C., Menghini, L., & Consiglio, C. (2024). The Relationship between Patients' Demands and Workplace Violence among Healthcare Workers: A Multilevel Look Focusing on the Moderating Role of Psychosocial Working Conditions. *International journal of environmental research and public health*, *21*(2), 178.

Brunero, S., Lamont, S., Dunn, S., Varndell, W., & Dickens, G. L. (2021). Examining the utility of the Violence Prevention Climate scale: In a metropolitan Australian general hospital. *Journal of clinical nursing*, *30*(15-16), 2399-2408.

Burkoski, V., Farshait, N., Yoon, J., Clancy, P. V., Fernandes, K., Howell, M. R., ... & Collins, B. E. (2019). Violence Prevention: Technology-Enabled Therapeutic Intervention. *Nursing Leadership (Toronto, Ont.)*, *32*(SP), 58-70.

Cabilan, C. J., McRae, J., Ganzon, K., Appo, C., Rogers, S., O'Sullivan, M., ... & Johnston, A. (2023). Introducing a digital occupational violence risk assessment tool into an emergency department: a pilot implementation study. *Journal of emergency nursing*, *49*(3), 360-370.

Cabilan, C. J., McRae, J., Learmont, B., Taurima, K., Galbraith, S., Mason, D., ... & Johnston, A. N. (2022). Validity and reliability of the novel three-item occupational violence patient risk assessment tool. *Journal of Advanced Nursing*, *78*(4), 1176-1185.

Cabilan, C. J., Eley, R., Snoswell, C., Jones, A. T., & Johnston, A. N. (2023). Inter-rater reliability of the occupational violence risk assessment tool for emergency departments. *Australasian emergency care*, *26*(1), 54-58.

Choi, K. R., Omery, A. K., & Watkins, A. M. (2019). An integrative literature review of psychiatric rapid response teams and their implementation for de-escalating behavioral crises in nonpsychiatric hospital settings. *JONA: The Journal of Nursing Administration*, *49*(6), 297-302.

Collins, R. (2021, July). Protect the nurse, protect the practice: Effective communication is the foundation for keeping nurses safe. In *Healthcare Management Forum* (Vol. 34, No. 4, pp. 200-204). Sage CA: Los Angeles, CA: SAGE Publications.

Croland, J., Overton, S., Nimtz-Rusch, K., Emmerling, S., & Wiegand, L. (2023). Implementation of a violence risk assessment and interventions aimed at the prevention of patient-perpetrated violent events across care settings. *JONA: The Journal of Nursing Administration*, *53*(3), 168-174.

Dahnke, D., & Mulkey, M. A. (2021). Using a behavioral response team on non-psychiatric nursing units. *Medsurg* nursing: official journal of the Academy of Medical-Surgical Nurses, 30(4), 229.

DeSouza, F., & Bleich, M. (2023). A quality improvement approach to violence reduction: standardizing the risk identification process. *Journal of nursing care quality*, *38*(4), 361-366.

Emmerling, S. A., Croland, J. A., & Nimtz-Rusch, K. L. (2022). Selecting an instrument for assessing the risk of patient violence across a healthcare system. *JONA: The Journal of Nursing Administration*, *52*(5), 314-318.

Emmerling, S. A., McGarvey, J. S., & Burdette, K. S. (2024). Evaluating a workplace violence management program and nurses' confidence in coping with patient aggression. *JONA: The Journal of Nursing Administration*, *54*(3), 160-166.

Escue, J. S., Gutierrez, F., Batts, J. R., Lumagui, M., & Oloan, V. (2023). Implementing effective interventions against workplace violence. *Critical care nursing quarterly*, *46*(3), 255-270.

Ferron, E. M., Kosny, A., & Tonima, S. (2022). Workplace violence prevention: flagging practices and challenges in hospitals. *Workplace Health & Safety*, *70*(3), 126-135.

Ghosh, M., Twigg, D., Kutzer, Y., Towell-Barnard, A., De Jong, G., & Dodds, M. (2019). The validity and utility of violence risk assessment tools to predict patient violence in acute care settings: An integrative literature review. *International journal of mental health nursing*, *28*(6), 1248-1267.

Hamrick, B., Van Hassel, T., Snyder, D., & Stephens, C. (2023). Screening for behavioral health patient aggression in emergency departments to reduce workplace violence. *Journal of emergency nursing*, *49*(3), 403-414.

Havaei, F., & MacPhee, M. (2020). The impact of heavy nurse workload and patient/family complaints on workplace violence: An application of human factors framework. *Nursing open*, 7(3), 731-741.

Hunter, P. A. (2020). An Evaluation of the Efficacy of Workplace Violence Prevention Programs in Reducing Workplace Violence Injuries to Registered Nurses in Connecticut (Doctoral dissertation, Indiana University of Pennsylvania). <u>https://www.proquest.com/openview/05e9896adc04217ceed8b347e7ac7e14/1.pdf?pq-</u> origsite=gscholar&cbl=51922&diss=y

Hvidhjelm, J., Berring, L. L., Whittington, R., Woods, P., Bak, J., & Almvik, R. (2023). Short-Term Risk Assessment in the Long Term: A Scoping Review and Meta-Analysis of the Brøset Violence Checklist (BVC). *Journal of Psychiatric and Mental Health Nursing*.

Jones, M. (2021). Workplace Violence Prevention: Between Patients and Staff Utilizing the Broset Violence Checklist in an Adult Medical Surgical Telemetry Unit. University of California, Davis. https://escholarship.org/content/qt40t0189f/qt40t0189f.pdf

Iennaco, J. D., Molle, E., Allegra, M., Depukat, D., & Parkosewich, J. (2024). The Aggressive Incidents in Medical Settings (AIMS) study: advancing measurement to promote prevention of workplace violence. *The Joint Commission Journal on Quality and Patient Safety*, *50*(3), 166-176.

Ilarda, E., McIlveen, P., Tynan, A., & Senz, A. (2024). Emergency department staff experiences of the Bröset Violence Checklist. *Journal of Advanced Nursing*, *80*(5), 2027-2037

Ilarda, E., Senz, A., Tynan, A., & McIlveen, P. (2024). Risk factors for violence in an emergency department: Nurses' perspectives. *Emergency Medicine Australasia*.

Inuenwi, B., Lommel, L., Peter, S. B., & Carley, A. (2023). Increasing understanding and perceived confidence of nurses working in an emergency department in assessing patients at risk of violent behavior. *Clinical nurse specialist*, *37*(3), 139-143.

Kivisto, A. J. (2016). Violence risk assessment and management in outpatient clinical practice. *Journal of clinical psychology*, 72(4), 329-349.

Kim, S. C., Kaiser, J., Bulson, J., Hosford, T., Nurski, A., Sadat, C., & Kalinowski, N. (2022). Multisite study of aggressive behavior risk assessment tool in emergency departments. *Journal of the American College of Emergency Physicians Open*, *3*(2), e12693.

Labib, M., Deljou, A., Morgan III, R. J., Schroeder, D. R., Sprung, J., & Weingarten, T. N. (2023). Associations Between Oversedation and Agitation in Post anesthesia Recovery Room and Subsequent Severe Behavioral Emergencies. *Journal of Patient Safety*, 10-1097.

Lenk-Adusoo, M., Kangro, R., & Haring, L. (2024). The risk assessment of imminent inpatient aggression: A cross-cultural validation study of the dynamic appraisal of situational aggression in Estonia. *Journal of Psychiatric and Mental Health Nursing*, *31*(4), 560-571.

Li, C., Bentley, S., Gulati, M. S., Snedeker, K., & Marks, M. R. (2025). Staff Safety Alert Banner Program Against Workplace Violence at an Urban American Hospital. *Workplace Health & Safety*, *73*(1), 38-46.

Lim, M. C., Jeffree, M. S., Giloi, N., & Lukman, K. A. (2022). Workplace violence in healthcare settings: The risk factors, implications and collaborative preventive measures. *Annals of Medicine and Surgery*, 103727.

Malone, J. E., Campbell, T. P., & Curtis, A. M. (2023). A health system's journey to preventing workplace violence: Use of multidisciplinary teamwork to unify efforts across a health system. *Journal of healthcare risk management*.

Mallett-Smith, S., Jadalla, A., Hardan-Khalil, K., Sarff, L., & Brady, M. (2023). Implementation of an assault prevention quality improvement initiative in an urban emergency department. *Journal of nursing care quality*, *38*(4), 341-347.

Mancl, M. E. (2020). Improving Safety in the Pediatric Emergency Department through Early Violence/Aggression Assessment.

Mausz, J., Piquette, D., Bradford, R., Johnston, M., Batt, A. M., & Donnelly, E. A. (2024, April). Hazard flagging as a risk mitigation strategy for violence against emergency medical services. In *Healthcare* (Vol. 12, No. 9, p. 909). MDPI.

McCollum, M., McLaughlin, K., Garcia, J., Santos, A., & Lesandrini, J. (2024). Empowering Nurses in an Era of Workplace Violence: A Pilot Study. *Nurse Leader*, *22*(3), 251-257.

Naglee, C. (2023). Violence in the health care workplace and ERM solutions. *Journal of healthcare risk management*, *42*(3-4), 9-13.

Ogonah, M. G., Seyedsalehi, A., Whiting, D., & Fazel, S. (2023). Violence risk assessment instruments in forensic psychiatric populations: a systematic review and meta-analysis. *The Lancet Psychiatry*, *10*(10), 780-789.

Pagnucci, N., Ottonello, G., Capponi, D., Catania, G., Zanini, M., Aleo, G., ... & Bagnasco, A. (2022). Predictors of events of violence or aggression against nurses in the workplace: a scoping review. *Journal of Nursing Management*.

Partridge, B., & Affleck, J. (2018). Predicting aggressive patient behaviour in a hospital emergency department: an empirical study of security officers using the Brøset violence checklist. *Australasian emergency care*, *21*(1), 31-35.

Paterson, J., Fernandes, J., Hunter, K., Hubert, S., & Strudwick, G. (2019). Embedding psychiatric risk flags within an electronic health record: Initial findings and lessons learned. *Healthcare Quarterly*, *21*(4), 54–60.

Pierre, P. E., Loeb, S. J., & Bransby, K. A. (2023). Evaluating a Behavioral Response Team in an Acute Care Hospital. *Medsurg Nursing*, *32*(1), 46-61.

Pouwels, C., Spauwen, P., Verbeek, H., Winkens, I., & Ponds, R. (2024). Process evaluation of the implementation of the ABC method, an intervention for nurses dealing with challenging behaviour of patients with brain injury. *BMC nursing*, *23*(1), 354

Quinn, J. M., & Koopman, J. M. (2023). Violence risk assessment in the emergency department. *Journal of emergency nursing*, *49*(3), 352-359.

Racine, C. W., Johnston, D. N., Quigley, K. M., Strout, T. D., Durst, L. S., Guido, B. J., & Wolfrum, L. A. Utilization of the Fordham Risk Screening Tool for violence risk assessment in an emergency department. *Academic emergency medicine: official journal of the Society for Academic Emergency Medicine*.

Rodriguez, M. (2024). Implementation of the Dynamic Appraisal of Situational Aggression (DASA) Tool on Inpatient Mental Health Unit. [Doctoral project, University of St Augustine for Health Sciences]. SOAR @ USA: Student Scholarly Projects Collection. https://doi.org/10.46409/sr.OVML9594

Roper, A., Forsyth, D., & Moore, W. (2022). Standardized Response Following Violent Patient Incidents. *Medsurg Nursing*, *31*(4), 228-232.

Sammut, D., Hallett, N., Lees-Deutsch, L., & Dickens, G. L. (2023). A systematic review of violence risk assessment tools currently used in emergency care settings. *Journal of emergency nursing*, *49*(3), 371-86.

Seeburger, E. F., Gonzales, R., South, E. C., Friedman, A. B., & Agarwal, A. K. (2023). Qualitative perspectives of emergency nurses on electronic health record behavioral flags to promote workplace safety. *JAMA network open*, *6*(4), e239057-e239057.

Sharifi, S., Shahoei, R., Nouri, B., Almvik, R., & Valiee, S. (2020). Effect of an education program, risk assessment checklist and prevention protocol on violence against emergency department nurses: A single center before and after study. *International Emergency Nursing*, *50*, 100813. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ienj.2019.100813 March 2025 Shirk, H., Kreider, C., Bell, T., Gervase, S., Buchko, B. L., & Danford, C. A. (2024). Predictive Ability of the Dynamic Appraisal of Situational Aggression-Inpatient Version (DASA-IV) in Medical-Surgical Units. *Western Journal of Nursing Research*, 01939459241271393.

Spencer, C., Varty, M., Bosma, G. N., & Wogu, A. F. (2024). Psychometric Analysis of the Brøset Violence Checklist in Medical–Surgical Nursing Units. In *Nursing Forum* (Vol. 2024, No. 1, p. 5574982). Wiley.

Tajirian, T., Jankowicz, D., Lo, B., Sequeira, L., Strudwick, G., Almilaji, K., & Stergiopoulos, V. (2022). Tackling the Burden of Electronic Health Record Use Among Physicians in a Mental Health Setting: Physician Engagement Strategy. *Journal of Medical Internet Research*, 24(3), e32800.

Weltens, I., Bak, M., Verhagen, S., Vandenberk, E., Domen, P., van Amelsvoort, T., & Drukker, M. (2021). Aggression on the psychiatric ward: Prevalence and risk factors. A systematic review of the literature. *PloS one*, *16*(10), e0258346.

Yuniati, W., Putra, K. R., & Widasmara, D. (2020). Brøset Violence Checklist (BVC) versus Dynamic Appraisal of Situational Aggression-Inpatient Version (DASA-IV): their sensitivity, specificity and accuracy as a predictor of violence in 24 hours among schizophrenia pa-tients. *Higher education*, *3*, 2-7.

# Interventions - Meta Analysis of WPV Programs & Research Related to Individual Interventions and Case Studies

Abeyta, S., & Welsh, B. C. (2022). Effects of prevention interventions on violence in the workplace: A systematic review and meta-analysis. *Aggression and Violent Behavior*, 101747.

Arnetz JE, Hamblin L, Russell J, Upfal MJ, Luborsky M, Janisse J, Essenmacher L. Preventing patient-to-worker violence in hospitals: outcome of a randomized controlled intervention (2017). JOEM 59(1), 18-27. https://stacks.cdc.gov/view/cdc/43702

Badeaux, J. E., Triche, T., & Bennett, M. J. (2021). Reduction of aggressive and violent behavior toward behavioral health unit staff and other patients: a best practice implementation project. *JBI Evidence Implementation*, *19*(2), 177-189.

Bauersfeld, S., & Majers, J. S. (2023). Addressing workplace violence with evidence. *JONA: The Journal of Nursing Administration*, *53*(11), 615-620.

Blando, J. D., Lou Ridenour, M., & Hartley, D. (2020). Survey of Workplace Violence Perception, Prevention, Strategies, and Prevalence of Weapons In Healthcare Facilities. *Journal of Healthcare Protection Management*, *36*(2).

Brune, S., Killam, L., & Camargo-Plazas, P. (2023). Caring knowledge as a strategy to mitigate violence against nurses: a discussion paper. *Issues in mental health nursing*, 44(5), 437-452.

Brunero, S., Lamont, S., Dunn, S., Varndell, W., & Dickens, G. L. (2021). Examining the utility of the Violence Prevention Climate scale: In a metropolitan Australian general hospital. *Journal of clinical nursing*, *30*(15-16), 2399-2408.

Cheng, K. (2018). How to Prepare for and Survive a Violent Patient Encounter. Family Practice Management. 25(6): 5-10.

Christensen, S. S., Lassche, M., Banks, D., Smith, G., & Inzunza, T. M. (2021). Reducing Patient Aggression Through a Nonviolent Patient De-escalation Program: A Descriptive Quality Improvement Process. *Worldviews on Evidence-Based Nursing*.

Di Prinzio, R. R., Bondanini, G., De Falco, F., Vinci, M. R., Camisa, V., Santoro, A., ... & Zaffina, S. (2022). The management of workplace violence against healthcare workers: a multidisciplinary team for Total Worker Health<sup>®</sup> approach in a hospital. *International journal of environmental research and public health*, 20(1), 196.

Do, W. E. C. Prioritizing our Healthcare Workers: The Importance of Addressing the Intersection of Workplace Violence and Mental Health and Wellbeing.

Derscheid, D. J., Meyer, C., & Arnetz, J. E. (2025). Haddon matrix model: Application to workplace violence in a hospital setting. Journal of Healthcare Risk Management, 44(3), 26-35

Dunseth-Rosenbaum, T., Krueger, K., Spradlin, E., Hoffbauer, C., & Loper, P. (2023). Workplace violence in the hospital: strategies for meaningful change. *Journal of emergency nursing*, *49*(3), 345-351.

Escue, J. S., Gutierrez, F., Batts, J. R., Lumagui, M., & Oloan, V. (2023). Implementing effective interventions against workplace violence. *Critical care nursing quarterly*, *46*(3), 255-270.

Fan, S., An, W., Zeng, L., Liu, J., Tang, S., Chen, J., & Huang, H. (2021). Rethinking "zero tolerance": A moderated mediation model of mental resilience and coping strategies in workplace violence and nurses' mental health. *Journal of nursing scholarship*.

Foster, A., Wood, E., & Clowes, M. (2021). Identifying the evidence base of interventions supporting mental health nurses to cope with stressful working environments: A scoping review. *Journal of Nursing Management, 29*(6), 1639-1652.

Foster, C., Doud, L., Palangyo, T., Wood, M., Majzun, R., Bargmann-Losche, J., & Donnelly, L. F. (2021). Healthcare Worker Serious Safety Events: Applying Concepts from Patient Safety to Improve Healthcare Worker Safety. *Pediatric Quality & Safety*, *6*(4).

Fricke, J., Siddique, S. M., Douma, C., Ladak, A., Burchill, C. N., Greysen, R., & Mull, N. K. (2023). Workplace violence in healthcare settings: a scoping review of guidelines and systematic reviews. *Trauma, Violence, & Abuse, 24*(5), 3363-3383.

Havaei, F., MacPhee, M., & Lee, S. E. (2019). The effect of violence prevention strategies on perceptions of workplace safety: A study of medical-surgical and mental health nurses. *Journal of advanced nursing*, *75*(8), 1657-1666.

Howard, P. K., & Robinson, K. (2023). Addressing a key leadership challenge: workplace violence. *Journal of emergency nursing*, *49*(3), 326-329.

Hvidhjelm, J., Berring, L. L., Whittington, R., Woods, P., Bak, J., & Almvik, R. (2023). Short-Term Risk Assessment in the Long Term: A Scoping Review and Meta-Analysis of the Brøset Violence Checklist (BVC). *Journal of Psychiatric and Mental Health Nursing*.

Homotoff, K. (2021). Defusing aggressive behavior in the healthcare setting. *Journal of the American Academy of PAs*, *34*(9), 46-49.

Johnson-Howell, J. J., & Derscheid, D. J. (2020). Implementation of a Preparedness Program to Address Violent Situations in Healthcare. *Nursing Leadership*, *33*(3).

Kolutek, R., Erkutlu, H., & Chafra, J. (2024). Workplace violence and nurses' psychological well-being: The mediating role of burnout and the moderating role of psychological resilience. *Archives of Psychiatric Nursing*, *53*, 177-183.

Kumari, A., Sarkar, S., Ranjan, P., Chopra, S., Kaur, T., Baitha, U., ... & Klanidhi, K. B. (2022). Interventions for workplace violence against health-care professionals: A systematic review. *Work*, (Preprint), 1-13. <u>https://content.iospress.com/download/work/wor210046?id=work%2Fwor210046</u>

Kumari, A., Singh, A., Ranjan, P., Sarkar, S., Kaur, T., Upadhyay, A. D., ... & Baitha, U. (2021). Development and validation of a questionnaire to evaluate workplace violence in healthcare settings. *Cureus*, *13*(11).

Kynoch, K., Liu, X. L., Cabilan, C. J., & Ramis, M. A. (2024). Educational programs and interventions for health care staff to prevent and manage aggressive behaviors in acute hospitals: a systematic review. *JBI evidence synthesis*, *22*(4), 560-606.

Lim, M. C., Jeffree, M. S., Saupin, S. S., Giloi, N., & Lukman, K. A. (2022). Workplace violence in healthcare settings: the risk factors, implications and collaborative preventive measures. *Annals of Medicine and Surgery*, *78*, 103727.

Malone, J. E., Campbell, T. P., & Curtis, A. M. (2023). A health system's journey to preventing workplace violence: Use of multidisciplinary teamwork to unify efforts across a health system. *Journal of healthcare risk management*.

Marquez, S. M., Chang, C. H., & Arnetz, J. (2020). Effects of a workplace violence intervention on hospital employee perceptions of organizational safety. *Journal of occupational and environmental medicine*, *62*(12), e716-e724.

McCamon, T., Lowe, V., George, R., Gordon, R., & Watson, H. (2024). Risky Business. Interventions to Prevent Aggression Against Health Workers From Patients at Risk: An Integrative Review. *Journal of Clinical Nursing*.

Miller, O., Treseler, J., & Pignataro, S. (2024). Reducing (Behavioral) Restraint Use Through Simulation at the Bedside. *Journal for Nurses in Professional Development*, 40(3), 144-148.

Morphet, J., Griffiths, D., Beattie, J., Reyes, D. V., & Innes, K. Collegian, Prevention and management of occupational violence and aggression in healthcare: A scoping review (2018). 25(6), 621-632. https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/abs/pii/S1322769617302901

Noga, P. M., Dermenchyan, A., Grant, S. M., & Dowdell, E. B. (2021). Developing Statewide Violence Prevention Programs in Health Care: An Exemplar From Massachusetts. *Policy, Politics, & Nursing Practice, 22*(2), 156-164.

Poore, J., Mays, C. L., McKibban, L., Harbert, Z., & Schroedle, K. (2024). Using simulated patients to teach de-escalation during Registered Nurses' onboarding. *Clinical Simulation in Nursing*, *94*, 101598.

Prendergast, V., Elmasry, S., Juhl, N. A., & Chapple, K. M. (2023). Resilience Room Use and Its Effect on Distress Among Nurses and Allied Staff. *Journal of Neuroscience Nursing*, 10-1097

Quigley, E., Schwoebel, A., Ruggiero, J., Inacker, P., McEvoy, T., & Hollister, S. (2021). Addressing Workplace Violence and Aggression in Health Care Settings:: One Unit's Journey. *Nurse Leader*, *19*(1), 70-75.

Quigley, P. A., Votruba, L., & Kaminski, J. (2020). Impact of patient-engaged video surveillance on nursing workforce safety: patient aggression/violence. *Journal of nursing care quality*, *35*(3), 213.

Rajabi, F., Jahangiri, M., Bagherifard, F., Banaee, S., & Farhadi, P. (2020). Strategies for controlling violence against health care workers: Application of fuzzy analytical hierarchy process and fuzzy additive ratio assessment. *Journal of Nursing Management*, *28*(4), 777-786.

Raveel, A., & Schoenmakers, B. Interventions to prevent aggression against doctors: a systematic review. (2019). BMJ open, 9(9), e028465. <u>https://bmjopen.bmj.com/content/9/9/e028465</u>

Roper, A., Forsyth, D., & Moore, W. (2022). Standardized Response Following Violent Patient Incidents. *Medsurg Nursing*, *31*(4), 228-232.

Sanders, J., Thomas, L., Kerr, T., Benita, T., Abela, K., & Ulrich, B. (2023). Interventions to prevent and mitigate workplace violence: Teaming up for a safer environment. *Nursing Management*, *54*(8), 20-30.

Schrøder, K., Bovil, T., Jørgensen, J. S., & Abrahamsen, C. (2022). Evaluation of the Buddy Study', a peer support program for second victims in healthcare: a survey in two Danish hospital departments. *BMC health services research*, *22*(1), 1-10.

Schulz-Quach, C., Lyver, B., Reynolds, C., Hanagan, T., Haines, J., Shannon, J., ... & Sethi, R. (2025). Understanding and measuring workplace violence in healthcare: a Canadian systematic framework to address a global healthcare phenomenon. *BMC Emergency Medicine*, *25*(1), 9.

Smith, M. A. (2023). A clinical nurse leader-guided behavior management consult team to impact workplace violence against nurses. *Journal of nursing care quality*, *38*(3), 272-277.

Somani, R., Muntaner, C., Hillan, E., Velonis, A. J., & Smith, P. (2021). A systematic review: effectiveness of interventions to de-escalate workplace violence against nurses in healthcare settings. *Safety and health at work*, *12*(3), 289-295.

Spelten, E., Thomas, B., O'Meara, P. F., Maguire, B. J., FitzGerald, D., & Begg, S. J. (2020). Organisational interventions for preventing and minimising aggression directed towards healthcare workers by patients and patient advocates. *Cochrane Database of Systematic Reviews*, (4).

Tilley, L., Mistretta, J., Barrett, C., & Billingsley, L. (2023). Workplace violence in health care: utilization of protection, prevention, and planning strategies. *Journal of Radiology Nursing*, *42*(2), 186-190.

Tölli, S., Kontio, R., Partanen, P., & Häggman-Laitila, A. (2021). Conceptual framework for a comprehensive competence in managing challenging behaviour: The views of trained instructors. *Journal of Psychiatric and Mental Health Nursing*, *28*(4), 692-705.

Tuominen, J., Tölli, S., & Häggman-Laitila, A. (2023). Violence by clients and patients against social and healthcare staff– An integrative review of staff's well-being at work, implementation of work and leaders' activities. *Journal of clinical nursing*, *32*(13-14), 3173-3184.

Yosep, I., Mardhiyah, A., Hendrawati, H., & Hendrawati, S. (2023). Interventions for reducing negative impacts of workplace violence among health workers: a scoping review. *Journal of Multidisciplinary Healthcare*, 1409-1421.

Winokur, E., Zamil, T., Loucks, J., Munoz, K., & Rutledge, D. N. (2022). Hospital Nurse Competency to Care for Patients with Behavioral Health Concerns: A Follow-Up Study. *Journal for Nurses in Professional Development*, *38*(2), 71-75.

# Training

Abozaid, D. A., Momen, M., Ezz, N. F. A. E., Ahmed, H. A., Al-Tehewy, M. M., El-Setouhy, M., ... & Houssinie, M. E. (2022). Patient and visitor aggression de-escalation training for nurses in a teaching hospital in Cairo, Egypt. *BMC nursing*, *21*(1), 1-8.

Al-hamzat, S., Rababah, J. A., & Al-Hammouri, M. M. (2024). Examining the Effectiveness of a Simulation Training Program on Enhancing Nursing Students' Efficacy About Managing Nonphysical Violence. *Clinical Simulation in Nursing*, *93*, 101577.

Arroyo, M. L. (2019). Impact of a Healthcare Workplace Violence Prevention Module on Staff Knowledge (Doctoral dissertation, Walden University).

Baby, M., Gale, C., & Swain, N. (2018). Communication skills training in the management of patient aggression and violence in healthcare. *Aggression and violent behavior*, *39*, 67-82.

Brunero, S., Dunn, S., & Lamont, S. (2021). Development and effectiveness of tabletop exercises in preparing health practitioners in violence prevention management: A sequential explanatory mixed methods study. *Nurse education today*, *103*, 104976.

Clay, C. J., Hochmuth, J. M., & Wirth, O. (2024). Virtual Reality Training to Reduce Workplace Violence in Healthcare. *Issues in mental health nursing*, 1-10.

Cortez, M. (2024). Addressing Workplace Violence in Critical Care: A Call for Comprehensive Training and Support. *Critical Care Nurse*, 44(6), 11-14.

Duncan, G., Schabbing, M., & Gable, B. D. (2021). A Novel Simulation-Based Multidisciplinary Verbal De-escalation Training. *Cureus*, *13*(12).

Glanert-Kempf, M., Oman, S. P., Lannen, A., Delano, P., & Perregrini, M. (2020). Using Simulation to Identify and Manage Ambulatory Care Workplace Violence. AAACN Viewpoint, 42(6), 8-9.

Griffin, C., Nowacki, K., & Woodroof, A. (2021). Creating safe and healing environments: Innovative curriculum to support team members during patient and family escalations in a quaternary care pediatric hospital. *Archives of Psychiatric Nursing*, *35*(2), 200-205.

L'Engle, K., Trejo, E., & Coutinho, A. J. (2024). Digital Coaching to Address Health, Wellness, and Burnout Among Healthcare Workers: Pilot Study Results. *Workplace Health & Safety*, 21650799241291874.

Lickiewicz, J., Lorenz, L. S., & Kolb, B. (2024, April). Photovoice in Aggression Management Training for Medical and Nursing Students—A Pilot Study. In *Healthcare* (Vol. 12, No. 9, p. 873). MDPI.

Provost, S., MacPhee, M., Daniels, M., Naimi, M., & McLeod, C. (2023). An evaluation of violence prevention education in healthcare. *Safety science*, *159*, 106011.

Rosenman, E. D., Vrablik, M. C., Charlton, P. W., Chipman, A. K., & Fernandez, R. (2017). Promoting workplace safety: teaching conflict management and de-escalation skills in graduate medical education. *Journal of graduate medical education*, *9*(5), 562-566.

Shulman, A. (2020). Mitigating workplace violence via de-escalation training. *Evidence Based Healthcare Security Research Series*.

Small, T. F., Smith, C. R., Hutton, S., Davis, K. G., & Gillespie, G. L. (2022). Workplace Violence Prevention Training, Safety Resources, and Commitment to HHCWs' Safety. *Workplace Health & Safety*, 21650799221076871.

Thompson, S. L., Zurmehly, J., Bauldoff, G., & Rosselet, R. (2022). De-escalation training as part of a workplace violence prevention program. *JONA: The Journal of Nursing Administration*, *52*(4), 222-227.

Varty, M., Mines, M., DelMonte, J., & Ratliff, B. (2024). Implementing evidence-based workplace violence prevention education to support frontline staff at risk for workplace violence. *Journal for nurses in professional development*, *40*(1), 4-9.

Wittkower, L. D., Bryan, J. L., & Asghar-Ali, A. A. (2021). A Scoping Review of Recommendations and Training to Respond to Patient Microaggressions. *Academic Psychiatry*, 1-13.

Wu, J. C., Chen, H. Y., Hsieh, J. L., Clinciu, D. L., & Tung, H. H. (2019). Enhancing health care personnel's response to ER violence using situational simulation. *Clinical Simulation in Nursing*, *28*, 6-14.

Zhang, Y., Cai, J., Qin, Z., Wang, H., & Hu, X. (2023). Evaluating the impact of an information-based education and training platform on the incidence, severity, and coping resources status of workplace violence among nurses: a quasi-experimental study. *BMC nursing*, 22(1), 446.

Zhi, S., Gao, S., Sun, J., Ma, D., Zhao, Y., He, M., ... & Sun, J. (2024). Virtual reality-based dementia educational programmes for formal and informal caregivers of people with dementia: A scoping review. *Journal of Clinical Nursing*.

# **Mental Health Environments**

Amara, S. S., & R. Hansen, B. (2024). Reducing Violence by Patients against Healthcare Workers at Inpatient Psychiatric Hospitals: An Integrative Review. *Issues in Mental Health Nursing*, *45*(11), 1185-1193.

Anderson, K. K., & Jenson, C. E. (2019). Violence risk–assessment screening tools for acute care mental health settings: Literature review. *Archives of psychiatric nursing*, *33*(1), 112-119.

Amunrud, A., & Bjorklund, P. (2022). Implementation of the dynamic appraisal of situational aggression in inpatient mental health. *Perspectives in Psychiatric Care*, *58*(3), 1153-1159.

Badeaux, J. E., Triche, T., & Bennett, M. J. (2021). Reduction of aggressive and violent behavior toward behavioral health unit staff and other patients: a best practice implementation project. *JBI Evidence Implementation*, *19*(2), 177-189.

Bakes-Denman, L., Mansfield, Y., & Meehan, T. (2021). Supporting mental health staff following exposure to occupational violence–staff perceptions of 'peer'support. *International Journal of Mental Health Nursing*, *30*(1), 158-166.

Feinstein, R. E., & Yager, J. (2018). A live threat violence simulation exercise for psychiatric outpatient departments: A valuable aid to training in violence prevention. *Academic psychiatry*, *42*, 598-604.

Foster, A., Wood, E., & Clowes, M. (2021). Identifying the evidence base of interventions supporting mental health nurses to cope with stressful working environments: A scoping review. *Journal of Nursing Management*, *29*(6), 1639-1652

Hallett, N., & Dickens, G. L. (2021). The violence prevention climate of mental health wards: a cross-sectional study of staff and patient views. *Social psychiatry and psychiatric epidemiology*, *56*(1), 97-107.

Hilton, N. Z., Ricciardelli, R., Shewmake, J., Rodrigues, N. C., Seto, M. C., & Ham, E. (2021). Perceptions of workplace violence and workplace stress: A mixed methods study of trauma among psychiatric workers. *Issues in mental health nursing*, *42*(9), 797-807.

Hilton, N. Z., Addison, S., Ham, E., C Rodrigues, N., & Seto, M. C. (2022). Workplace violence and risk factors for PTSD among psychiatric nurses: Systematic review and directions for future research and practice. *Journal of Psychiatric and Mental Health Nursing*, *29*(2), 186-203.

Jang, S. J., Son, Y. J., & Lee, H. (2022). Prevalence, associated factors and adverse outcomes of workplace violence towards nurses in psychiatric settings: A systematic review. *International journal of mental health nursing*, *31*(3), 450-468.

Konttila, J., Pesonen, H.-M. & Kyng€as, H. (2018). Violence committed against nursing staff by patients in psychiatric outpatient settings. International Journal of Mental Health Nursing, 27, 1592–1605.

Odes, R., Chapman, S., Harrison, R., Ackerman, S., & Hong, O. (2021). Frequency of violence towards healthcare workers in the United States' inpatient psychiatric hospitals: A systematic review of literature. *International journal of mental health nursing*, *30*(1), 27-46.

Pelto-Piri, V., & Kjellin, L. (2021). Social inclusion and violence prevention in psychiatric inpatient care. A qualitative interview study with service users, staff members and ward managers. *BMC health services research*, *21*(1), 1-13.

Price, O., Armitage, C. J., Bee, P., Brooks, H., Lovell, K., Butler, D., ... & Papastavrou Brooks, C. (2024). De-escalating aggression in acute inpatient mental health settings: a behaviour change theory-informed, secondary qualitative analysis of staff and patient perspectives. *BMC psychiatry*, *24*(1), 548.

Rodrigues, N. C., Ham, E., Kirsh, B., Seto, M. C., & Hilton, N. Z. (2021). Mental health workers' experiences of support and help-seeking following workplace violence: A qualitative study. *Nursing & Health Sciences*, 23(2), 381-388.

Tajirian, T., Jankowicz, D., Lo, B., Sequeira, L., Strudwick, G., Almilaji, K., & Stergiopoulos, V. (2022). Tackling the Burden of Electronic Health Record Use Among Physicians in a Mental Health Setting: Physician Engagement Strategy. *Journal of Medical Internet Research*, *24*(3), e32800.

Välimäki, M., Lantta, T., Lam, Y. T. J., Cheung, T., Cheng, P. Y. I., Ng, T., ... & Bressington, D. (2022). Perceptions of patient aggression in psychiatric hospitals: a qualitative study using focus groups with nurses, patients, and informal caregivers. *BMC psychiatry*, 22(1), 1-14.

Weltens, I., Bak, M., Verhagen, S., Vandenberk, E., Domen, P., van Amelsvoort, T., & Drukker, M. (2021). Aggression on the psychiatric ward: Prevalence and risk factors. A systematic review of the literature. *PloS one*, *16*(10), e0258346

Wilson, A., Hurley, J., Hutchinson, M., & Lakeman, R. (2021). "Can mental health nurses working in acute mental health units really be trauma-informed?" An integrative review of the literature. *Journal of Psychiatric and Mental Health Nursing*, *28*(5), 900-923.

## **Emergency Room**

Aljohani, B., Burkholder, J., Tran, Q. K., Chen, C., Beisenova, K., & Pourmand, A. (2021). Workplace violence in the emergency department: a systematic review and meta-analysis. *Public Health*, *196*, 186-197.

Ayasreh, I. R., & Hayajneh, F. A. (2021). Workplace violence against emergency nurses: A literature review. *Critical care nursing quarterly*, *44*(2), 187-202.

Carey, I., & Hendricks, K. (2023). Workplace violence against healthcare workers using nationally representative estimates of emergency department data, 2015-2017. *American journal of industrial medicine*.

Davids, J., Murphy, M., Moore, N., Wand, T., & Brown, M. (2021). Exploring staff experiences: A case for redesigning the response to aggression and violence in the emergency department. *International emergency nursing*, *57*, 101017.

Doehring, M. C., Palmer, M., Satorius, A., Vaughn, T., Mulat, B., Beckman, A., ... & Hunter, B. R. (2024). Workplace Violence in a Large Urban Emergency Department. *JAMA Network Open*, 7(11), e2443160-e2443160.

Ewen, J., Gaeta, L., Fitzgerald, K. A., Ragione, B. L., Feil, D. A., Raio, C. C., ... & Eckardt, P. A. (2023). Measuring emergency department staff perceptions of causes and management of violence. *Journal of Trauma Nursing* / *JTN*, *30*(6), 307-317.

Gillespie, G. L., & Tamsukhin, S. (2023). Why won't it stop: Workplace violence in emergency care. *Journal of emergency nursing*, *49*(3), 310-316.

Hamrick, B., Van Hassel, T., Snyder, D., & Stephens, C. (2023). Screening for behavioral health patient aggression in emergency departments to reduce workplace violence. *Journal of emergency nursing*, *49*(3), 403-414.

Huang, H., Li, F., & Jiang, Y. (2024). Connor Davidson resilience scores, perceived organizational support and workplace violence among emergency nurses. *International emergency nursing*, *75*, 101489.

Ilarda, E., Senz, A., Tynan, A., & McIlveen, P. (2024). Risk factors for violence in an emergency department: Nurses' perspectives. *Emergency Medicine Australasia*, *36*(3), 459-465.

Ilarda, E., McIlveen, P., Tynan, A., & Senz, A. (2024). Emergency department staff experiences of the Bröset Violence Checklist. *Journal of Advanced Nursing*, *80*(5), 2027-2037.

Inuenwi, B., Lommel, L., Peter, S. B., & Carley, A. (2023). Increasing understanding and perceived confidence of nurses working in an emergency department in assessing patients at risk of violent behavior. *Clinical nurse specialist*, *37*(3), 139-143.

Johanna, Z., Elin, V., Mats, H., Henrik, A., & Jonas, A. (2022). Nurses' experiences of encountering patients with mental illness in prehospital emergency care–a qualitative interview study. *BMC nursing*, *21*(1), 1-10.

Kim, S. C., Kaiser, J., Bulson, J., Hosford, T., Nurski, A., Sadat, C., & Kalinowski, N. (2022). Multisite study of aggressive behavior risk assessment tool in emergency departments. *Journal of the American College of Emergency Physicians Open*, *3*(2), e12693.

Mancl, M. E. (2020). Improving Safety in the Pediatric Emergency Department through Early Violence/Aggression Assessment.

Margavi, M. K., Bagheri-Nesami, M., Mousavinasab, N., & Lolaty, H. A. (2020). Frequency of violence against nurses and its related factors during cardiopulmonary resuscitation in emergency wards. *Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Sciences*, 7(4), 262.

McGuire, S. S., Mullan, A. F., & Clements, C. M. (2022). Workplace Violence in the Emergency Department: Case Study on Staff and Law Enforcement Disagreement on Reportable Crimes. *International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health*, *19*(11), 6818

McGuire, S. S., Gazley, B., Majerus, A. C., Mullan, A. F., & Clements, C. M. (2022). Impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on workplace violence at an academic emergency department. *The American journal of emergency medicine*, *53*, 285-e1.

Nikathil, S., Olaussen, A., Gocentas, R. A., Symons, E., & Mitra, B. (2017). Workplace violence in the emergency department: A systematic review and meta-analysis. *Emergency Medicine Australasia*, *29*(3), 265-275.

Partridge, B., & Affleck, J. (2018). Predicting aggressive patient behaviour in a hospital emergency department: an empirical study of security officers using the Brøset violence checklist. *Australasian emergency care*, *21*(1), 31-35.

Quinn, J. M., & Koopman, J. M. (2023). Violence risk assessment in the emergency department. *Journal of emergency nursing*, 49(3), 352-359.

Seeburger, E. F., Gonzales, R., South, E. C., Friedman, A. B., & Agarwal, A. K. (2023). Qualitative perspectives of emergency nurses on electronic health record behavioral flags to promote workplace safety. *JAMA network open*, *6*(4), e239057-e239057.

Spelten, E., van Vuuren, J., O'Meara, P., Thomas, B., Grenier, M., Ferron, R., ... & Agarwal, G. (2022). Workplace violence against emergency health care workers: What Strategies do Workers use?. *BMC emergency medicine*, *22*(1), 1-11.

Spencer, E. (2024). Using body-worn cameras in emergency departments: a pilot project. *Emergency Nurse*, 32(1).

Stafford, S., Avsar, P., Nugent, L., O'Connor, T., Moore, Z., Patton, D., & Watson, C. (2022). What is the impact of patient violence in the Emergency Department on emergency nurses' intention to leave?. *Journal of Nursing Management*.

Timmins, F., Catania, G., Zanini, M., Ottonello, G., Napolitano, F., Musio, M. E., ... & Bagnasco, A. (2023). Nursing management of emergency department violence—Can we do more?. *Journal of clinical nursing*, *32*(7-8), 1487-1494.

Vrablik, M. C., Lawrence, M., Ray, J. M., Moore, M., & Wong, A. H. (2020). Addressing workplace safety in the emergency department: a multi-institutional qualitative investigation of health worker assault experiences. *Journal of Occupational and Environmental Medicine*, *62*(12), 1019-1028.

Wirth, T., Peters, C., Nienhaus, A., & Schablon, A. (2021). Interventions for workplace violence prevention in emergency departments: a systematic review. *International journal of environmental research and public health*, *18*(16), 8459.

Wong, A. H., Sabounchi, N. S., Roncallo, H. R., Ray, J. M., & Heckmann, R. (2022). A qualitative system dynamics model for effects of workplace violence and clinician burnout on agitation management in the emergency department. *BMC health services research*, *22*(1), 1-12.

Wong, A. H., Nath, B., Shah, D., Kumar, A., Brinker, M., Faustino, I. V., ... & Melnick, E. R. (2024). Formative evaluation of an emergency department clinical decision support system for agitation symptoms: a study protocol. *BMJ open*, *14*(2), e082834.

Yıldız, İ., & Yıldız, F. T. (2022). Pediatric emergency nurses' workplace violence experiences: A qualitative study. *International emergency nursing*, *62*, 101160.

## EMS

Afshari, A., Barati, M., Darabi, F., & Khazaei, A. (2024). Violent encounters on the front line: Sequential explanatory mixed-methods investigation of physical violence factors in the prehospital setting. *BMC Emergency Medicine*, 24(1), 162.

Drew, P., Tippett, V., & Devenish, S. (2021). Paramedic occupational violence mitigation: a comprehensive systematic review of emergency service worker prevention strategies and experiences for use in prehospital care. *Occupational and environmental medicine*, *78*(11), 841-848.

Drew, P., Devenish, S., & Tippett, V. (2024). Paramedic occupational violence: A qualitative examination of aggressive behaviour during out-of-hospital care. *Paramedicine*, *21*(6), 248-259.

Kamaja, V., & Nordquist, H. (2024). The recovery processes among paramedics who encountered violence during work a narrative interview study. *Journal of occupational medicine and toxicology*, *19*(1), 17.

Koser, B. W., Siddiqui, D. I., & Kropp, A. M. (2019). EMS Care In A Hostile Environment.

McGuire, S. S., Lampman, M. A., Smith, O. A., & Clements, C. M. (2024). Impact of workplace violence against emergency medical services (EMS). *Prehospital emergency care*, 1-9.

van Reemst, L., & Jongerling, J. (2021). Measuring and modeling exposure to external workplace aggression in three types of emergency responders. *Journal of interpersonal violence*, *36*(17-18), 7978-8003.

## **Pediatrics**

Aljuaid, N. H., & Alharbi, M. F. (2022). The Relationship Between Workplace Incivility and Patient Safety in Pediatric Nurses. *Journal of Nursing Care Quality*, 10-1097.

Derscheid, D. J., & Arnetz, J. E. (2020). Patient and family member violent situations in a pediatric hospital: A descriptive study. *Journal of Pediatric Nursing*, *55*, 241-249.

DePorre, A. G., Staggs, V., Hudson, Z., Larson, I., & Nadler, C. (2024). Patient and visitor-associated violence toward health care workers in a children's health system. *Pediatrics*.

Griffin, C., Nowacki, K., & Woodroof, A. (2021). Creating safe and healing environments: Innovative curriculum to support team members during patient and family escalations in a quaternary care pediatric hospital. *Archives of Psychiatric Nursing*, *35*(2), 200-205.

Kürtüncü, M., Kurt, A., Özdemir, S., Akkoç, B., & Güney, E. U. (2024). Perceptions of pediatric emergency nurses and parents presenting to the emergency department regarding violence: A qualitative study. *Journal of Pediatric Nursing*, *79*, e177-e185.

Mancl, M. E. (2020). Improving Safety in the Pediatric Emergency Department through Early Violence/Aggression Assessment.

Ozuah, P. O. (2024). The scourge of workplace violence. *Pediatrics*, 154(2), e2024066108.

Pavlov, H., Santillanes, G., & Claudius, I. (2021). Decline in pediatric emergency department behavioral team activations after institution of an agitation protocol. *Pediatric Emergency Care, 37*(4), e170-e173.

Sanders, N., Abela, K. M., Davenport, L., Lawrence, J., Gibbs, K., & Hess, L. M. (2024). Improving clinician agreement and comfort through the development of a pediatric behavioral health huddle tool. *Journal of Pediatric Nursing*.

Ustuner Top, F., Kulakaç, N., & Cam, H. H. (2024). Prevalence and determinants of workplace violence against pediatric emergency healthcare workers and its effect on their psychological resilience. *Clinical pediatrics*, *63*(7), 942-952.

Waltzman, M., Ozonoff, A., Fournier, K. A., Welcher, J., Milliren, C., Landschaft, A., ... & Kimia, A. A. (2024). Surveillance of health care-associated violence using natural language processing. *Pediatrics*, *154*(2).

# **Ambulatory Care/Clinics**

Enosh, G., Freund, A., Goldblatt, H., Drach-Zahavy, A., Guindy, M., & Ofer-Bialer, G. (2021). Whose fault is it? Attribution of causes of patient violence among exposed and unexposed community-based family physicians. *Health & Social Care in the Community*, *29*(1), 175-184.

Folgo, A. R., & Iennaco, J. D. (2020). Staff perceptions of risk factors for violence and aggression in ambulatory care. *Work*, *65*(2), 435-445.

Glanert-Kempf, M., Oman, S. P., Lannen, A., Delano, P., & Perregrini, M. (2020). Using Simulation to Identify and Manage Ambulatory Care Workplace Violence. *AAACN Viewpoint*, *42*(6), 8-9.

Harfouche, M. N., Walton, E. C., Richardson, J. B., & Scalea, T. M. (2023). Implementation of an outpatient violence intervention program to increase service uptake. *Prevention science*, *24*(3), 535-540.

Jetty, A., Petterson, S., Westfall, J. M., & Jabbarpour, Y. (2021). Assessing primary care contributions to behavioral health: a cross-sectional study using medical expenditure panel survey. *Journal of Primary Care & Community Health*, *12*, 21501327211023871.

Johnsen, G. E., Morken, T., Baste, V., Rypdal, K., Palmstierna, T., & Johansen, I. H. (2020). Characteristics of aggressive incidents in emergency primary health care described by the Staff Observation Aggression Scale–Revised Emergency (SOAS-RE). *BMC health services research*, *20*(1), 1-8.

Kivisto, A. J. (2016). Violence risk assessment and management in outpatient clinical practice. *Journal of Clinical Psychology*, 72(4), 329-349.

Konttila, J., Pesonen, H.-M. & Kyngas, H. (2018). Violence committed against nursing staff by patients in psychiatric outpatient settings. *International Journal of Mental Health Nursing*, 27, 1592–1605.

Phipps, K. (2024). The Utilization of Empathy and Self-awareness Models to Deescalate Violence in the Ambulatory Clinic Setting. *Journal of Patient Experience*, *11*, 23743735241272261.

Pompeii, L., Benavides, E., Pop, O., et al. (2020). Workplace Violence in Outpatient Physician Clinics: A Systematic Review. *International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health*. 17(18): 6587. https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC7558610/

Spencer, C., Musenero, R., & Fouse, J. (2022). Prevalence and Determinants of Violence in Ambulatory Care via the Telephone. *AAACN Viewpoint*, *44*(2), 3-8.

Tyau, N. D., Swedish, K. A., & Perez, H. R. (2024). Workplace violence against primary care clinicians: a narrative review. *Journal of general internal medicine*, *39*(14), 2806-2828.

# Long Term Care

Conner, D. (2018). Violence and Security in Skilled Nursing/Assisted Care Facilities. The International Association for Healthcare Security and Safety. <u>https://iahssf.org/assets/IAHSS-Foundation-Violence-and-Security-in-Skilled-Nursing-and-Assisted-Care-Facilities-181203.pdf</u>

Conti, A., Scacchi, A., Clari, M., Scattaglia, M., Dimonte, V., & Gianino, M. M. (2022). Prevalence of violence perpetrated by healthcare workers in long-term care: a systematic review and meta-analysis. *International journal of environmental research and public health*, *19*(4), 2357.

Duijs, S. E., van Wees, M., Abma, T., Bourik, Z., Plak, O., Jaspers, Y., ... & Verdonk, P. (2024). "We just take care after each other" Relational health strategies of nurses and nursing aides working in residential long-term-care as a mechanism of in and exclusion in care teams. *Work*, (Preprint), 1-12.

Havaei, F., Adhami, N., Kaulius, M., Teymourian, R., Ahmadi, B., Afsah, S., ... & Alger, K. (2025). Unveiling the veil: Exploring experiences of patient-initiated workplace violence in long-term care and mental health and substance use settings. *WORK*, 10519815241305998.

Hurley, M., & Brophy, J. (2019). Is violence against long-term care staff becoming more'nor malized'?. *Canadian Nursing Home*, *30*(2).

Mohr, D. C., Curyto, K., Jedele, J. M., McConeghy, K. W., Intrator, O., Karel, M. J., & Vance, K. (2022). Impact of STAR-VA on staff injury and disruptive behavior reports in VA nursing homes. *Journal of the American Medical Directors Association*, 23(7), 1159-1165.

Pariona-Cabrera, P., Meacham, H., Tham, T. L., Cavanagh, J., Halvorsen, B., Holland, P., & Bartram, T. (2022). The buffering effects of psychological capital on the relationship between physical violence and mental health issues of nurses and personal care assistants working in aged care facilities. *Health care management review*, 10-1097.

Schaller, A., Klas, T., Gernert, M., & Steinbeißer, K. (2021). Health problems and violence experiences of nurses working in acute care hospitals, long-term care facilities, and home-based long-term care in Germany: A systematic review. *PloS one*, *16*(11), e0260050.

Schoultz, M., McGrogan, C., Beattie, M., Macaden, L., Carolan, C., Polson, R., & Dickens, G. (2022). Psychological first aid for workers in care and nursing homes: systematic review. *BMC nursing*, *21*(1), 1-6.

Shi, J., & Jiang, C. (2024). Exploring the associations between competence in dementia care and work attitudes among formal caregivers in nursing homes. *Journal of Clinical Nursing*.

Somes, J. (2023). Agitated geriatric patients and violence in the workplace. Journal of emergency nursing, 49(3), 320-325.

Temkin-Greener, H., Guo, W., McGarry, B., & Cai, S. (2024). Serious Mental Illness in Assisted Living Communities: Association with Nursing Home Placement. *Journal of the American Medical Directors Association*, *25*(5), 917-922.

Thomas, K. S., Zhang, W., Cornell, P. Y., Smith, L., Kaskie, B., & Carder, P. C. (2020). State variability in the prevalence and healthcare utilization of assisted living residents with dementia. *Journal of the American Geriatrics Society*, *68*(7), 1504-1511.

Xiao, C., Winstead, V., Townsend, C., & Jablonski, R. A. (2021). Certified Nursing Assistants' Perceived Workplace Violence in Long-Term Care Facilities: A Qualitative Analysis. *Workplace Health & Safety, 69*(8), 366-374

Zhi, S., Gao, S., Sun, J., Ma, D., Zhao, Y., He, M., ... & Sun, J. (2024). Virtual reality-based dementia educational programmes for formal and informal caregivers of people with dementia: A scoping review. *Journal of Clinical Nursing*.

# **Home Health**

Byon, H. D., Lee, M., Choi, M., Sagherian, K., Crandall, M., & Lipscomb, J. (2020). Prevalence of type II workplace violence among home healthcare workers: a meta-analysis. *American journal of industrial medicine*, *63*(5), 442-455.

Byon, H. D., Liu, X., Crandall, M., & Lipscomb, J. (2020). Understanding reporting of type II workplace violence among home health care nurses. *Workplace Health & Safety*, *68*(9), 415-421.

Clari, M., Conti, A., Scacchi, A., Scattaglia, M., Dimonte, V., & Gianino, M. M. (2020). Prevalence of workplace sexual violence against healthcare workers providing home care: a systematic review and meta-analysis. *International journal of environmental research and public health*, *17*(23), 8807.

Gelaw, A., Parker, S., Johnson, A., Nguyen, H., Jolly, A., Forner, V., ... & Collie, A. (2024). Determinants of psychological injury among health and social care workers in community settings: A systematic review. *Work*, (Preprint), 1-25.

Grasmo, S. G., Liaset, I. F., & Redzovic, S. E. (2021). Home care workers' experiences of work conditions related to their occupational health: a qualitative study. *BMC Health Services Research*, *21*(1), 1-13.

Karlsson, N., Markkanen, P., Kriebel, D., et al. (2019). Home Care Aides' Experiences of Verbal Abuse: A Survey of Characteristics and Risk Factors. Occupational and Environmental Medicine. 76(7): 448-454.

King, E. C., Chan, J., Benn, A., Michener, M. B., Van Belle, T. A., & McKay, S. M. (2024). Shifting the safety culture: evaluation of a novel approach to understanding and responding to workplace harassment and violence experienced by homecare workers. *Workplace Health & Safety*, 21650799241232148.

Phoo, N. N. N., & Reid, A. (2022). Determinants of violence towards care workers working in the home setting: A systematic review. *American journal of industrial medicine*, *65*(6), 447-467.

Ruco, A., Nichol, K., Edwards, B., Roy, M., Morgan, D., Holness, D. L., & McKay, S. (2022). Spot it, prevent it: evaluation of a rapid response algorithm for managing workplace violence among home care workers. *Workplace Health & Safety*, *70*(11), 493-499.

Schaller, A., Klas, T., Gernert, M., & Steinbeißer, K. (2021). Health problems and violence experiences of nurses working in acute care hospitals, long-term care facilities, and home-based long-term care in Germany: A systematic review. *PloS one*, *16*(11), e0260050.

Small, T. F. (2020). Home Visiting Safety for Home Healthcare Clinicians. Home Healthcare Now, 38(3), 169.

Small, T. F., Gillespie, G. L., Kean, E. B., & Hutton, S. (2020). Workplace violence interventions used by home healthcare workers: an integrative review. *Home healthcare now*, *38*(4), 193-201.

Small, T. F., Gillespie, G. L., Hutton, S., Davis, K. G., & Smith, C. R. (2023). Workplace violence prevalence and reporting in home health care: A cross sectional survey. *Home Health Care Management & Practice*, *35*(1), 31-39.

Small, T. F. (2024). Workplace violence prevention training for home care workers. *Home healthcare now, 42*(2), 120-121.

Zhong, X. F., & Shorey, S. (2023). Experiences of workplace violence among healthcare workers in home care settings: A qualitative systematic review. *International nursing review*, *70*(4), 596-605.

Home Healthcare Workers: A Growing and Diverse Workforce at High Risk for Workplace Violence. NIOSH Science Blog Posted on September 2, 2021 by Tamara Felice Small, PhD; Susan Goodwin Gerberich, PhD, MSPH; Anthony Oliveri, PhD, MPH, CIH, CSP; Christina Socias-Morales, DrPH; Dawn Castillo; and Richard Olawoyin, PhD, CSP <u>https://blogs.cdc.gov/niosh-science-blog/2021/09/02/hhc-violence/</u>

## Website resources

Safe Care BC Violence Risk Assessment – home care and community; long term care; nonclinical area <a href="https://www.safecarebc.ca/initiatives/violenceprevention/violence-risk-assessment/">https://www.safecarebc.ca/initiatives/violenceprevention/violence-risk-assessment/</a>

# Bullying

Agee, E., Boots, B. K., Cantu, C., Hunley, A. N., Mains, B. C., McElroy, S., ... & Schotte, A. L. (2022). Newly Licensed Nurse Perceived Incivility: A Valid and Reliable Assessment Tool. *JONA: The Journal of Nursing Administration*, *52*(6), 359-364.

Al Muharraq, E. H., Baker, O. G., & Alallah, S. M. (2022). The prevalence and the relationship of workplace bullying and nurses turnover intentions: A cross sectional study. *SAGE open Nursing*, *8*, 23779608221074655.

Alquwez, N. (2023). Association between nurses' experiences of workplace incivility and the culture of safety of hospitals: A cross-sectional Study. *Journal of Clinical Nursing*, *32*(1-2), 320-331.

Alsadaan, N., Ramadan, O. M. E., & Alqahtani, M. (2024). From incivility to outcomes: tracing the effects of nursing incivility on nurse well-being, patient engagement, and health outcomes. *BMC nursing*, *23*(1), 325.

Amini, K., Miyanaji, H., & Din Mohamadi, M. (2022). Bullying and burnout in critical care nurses: A cross-sectional descriptive study. *Nursing in critical care*.

Anusiewicz, C. V., Li, P., & Patrician, P. A. (2021). Measuring workplace bullying in a US nursing population with the Short Negative Acts Questionnaire. *Research in Nursing & Health*, 44(2), 319-328.

Arnetz, J. E., Neufcourt, L., Sudan, S., Arnetz, B. B., Maiti, T., & Viens, F. (2020). Nurse-reported bullying and documented adverse patient events: an exploratory study in a US hospital. *Journal of nursing care quality*, *35*(3), 206-212.

Aunger, J. A., Abrams, R., Westbrook, J. I., Wright, J. M., Pearson, M., Jones, A., ... & Maben, J. (2024). Why do acute healthcare staff behave unprofessionally towards each other and how can these behaviours be reduced?: A realist review. *Health and Social Care Delivery Research*, *12*(25), 1-195.

Blackstock, S., Cummings, G., Glanfield, F., & Yonge, O. (2022). A review: Developing an ecological model approach to coworker incivility experiences of new graduate nurses. *Journal of Advanced Nursing*.

Blackstock, S., Cummings, G. G., Glanfield, F., & Yonge, O. (2023). New Graduate nurses' incivility experiences: the roles of workplace empowerment, nursing leadership and areas of worklife. *Policy, Politics, & Nursing Practice, 24*(2), 118-139.

Bolding, D. J., McCallister, C., Poisson, K., Pufki, D. M., Ramirez, A., Rickly, C., & Scattini, V. (2021). Incivility in the occupational therapy workplace: A survey of practitioners. *The American Journal of Occupational Therapy*, *75*(3).

Campbell, L. A., LaFreniere, J. R., Almekdash, M. H., Perlmutter, D. D., Song, H., Kelly, P. J., ... & Shannon, K. L. (2021). Assessing civility at an academic health science center: Implications for employee satisfaction and well-being. *Plos one*, *16*(2), e0247715.

Doo, E. Y., & Choi, S. (2021). Effects of horizontal violence among nurses on patient safety: Mediation of organisational communication satisfaction and moderated mediation of organisational silence. *Journal of Nursing Management*, *29*(3), 526-534.

Eblin, A. (2020). Horizontal violence towards new graduate nurses: when will it stop?. *Issues in mental health nursing*, *41*(9), 850-852.

Edmonson, C., & Zelonka, C. (2019). Our own worst enemies: The nurse bullying epidemic. *Nursing administration quarterly*, *43*(3), 274-279.

El Ghaziri, M., Simons, S., Lipscomb, J., Storr, C. L., McPhaul, K., London, M., ... & Johnson, J. V. (2020). Understanding the impact of bullying in a unionized US public sector workforce. *Workplace Health & Safety*, *68*(3), 139-153.

El Ghaziri, M., Johnson, S., Purpora, C., Simons, S., & Taylor, R. (2022). Registered nurses' experiences with incivility during the early phase of COVID-19 pandemic: Results of a multi-state survey. *Workplace Health & Safety*, *70*(3), 148-160.

Fontenot, J., Hebert, M., Stefanski, R., & Morris, D. (2024). Systemic antecedents of academic incivility in nursing: An integrative review. *Teaching and Learning in Nursing*.

Foreman, R. A. (2023). Lateral incivility, nursing students, and the academic environment: A modified epidemiological triangle. *Nurse Education Today*, 105883.

Goh, H. S., Hosier, S., & Zhang, H. (2022). Prevalence, antecedents, and consequences of workplace bullying among nurses—a summary of reviews. *International journal of environmental research and public health*, *19*(14), 8256.

Gosselin, T. K., & Ireland, A. M. (2020, June). Addressing incivility and bullying in the practice environment. In *Seminars in oncology nursing* (Vol. 36, No. 3, p. 151023). WB Saunders.

Hampton, D., & Rayens, M. K. (2019). Impact of psychological empowerment on workplace bullying and intent to leave. *JONA: The Journal of Nursing Administration*, *49*(4), 179-185.

Holm, K., Jönsson, S., & Muhonen, T. (2023). How are witnessed workplace bullying and bystander roles related to perceived care quality, work engagement, and turnover intentions in the healthcare sector? A longitudinal study. *International journal of nursing studies*, *138*, 104429.

Jang, S. J., Son, Y. J., & Lee, H. (2022). Intervention types and their effects on workplace bullying among nurses: A systematic review. *Journal of Nursing Management*.

Kalondu Kamolo, E., & Wangui Njung'e, W. (2021). Interventions for Addressing Incivility among Undergraduate Nursing Students: A Mixed Study Review. *International Journal of Caring Sciences*, 14(1).

King, C., Rossetti, J., Smith, T. J., Smyth, S., Moscatel, S., Raison, M., ... & Watson, J. (2021). Workplace Incivility and Nursing Staff: An Analysis Through the Lens of Jean Watson's Theory of Human Caring. *International Journal for Human Caring*, *25*(4), 283-291.

Kristensen, A. K., Kristensen, M. L., & Mikkelsen, E. G. (2023). Workplace hazing in nursing: An integrative literature review. *Health Sciences Review*, 100120.

Krut, B. A., Laing, C. M., Moules, N. J., & Estefan, A. (2021). The impact of horizontal violence on the individual nurse: A qualitative research study. *Nurse education in practice*, *54*, 103079.

Lang, M., Jones, L., Harvey, C., & Munday, J. (2021). Workplace bullying, burnout and resilience amongst perioperative nurses in Australia: A descriptive correlational study. *Journal of Nursing Management*.

Laschinger, H. K. S., Wong, C. A., & Grau, A. L. (2012). The influence of authentic leadership on newly graduated nurses' experiences of workplace bullying, burnout and retention outcomes: A cross-sectional study. *International journal of nursing studies*, *49*(10), 1266-1276.

Lee, S. E., Seo, J. K., & Macphee, M. (2024). Effects of workplace incivility and workload on nurses' work attitude: The mediating effect of burnout. *International Nursing Review*.

Luca, C. E., Pezzoli, G., Kunz, S., & Bianchi, M. (2024). Nursing Leaders' Knowledge and Awareness of Bullying and Lateral Violence: A Qualitative Study. *SAGE Open Nursing*, *10*, 23779608241274210.

Machul, M., Krasucka, K. N., Pelc, D., & Dziurka, M. (2024). Impact of workplace bullying on nursing care quality: a comprehensive review. *Medical Science Monitor: International Medical Journal of Experimental and Clinical Research*, *30*, e944815-1.

Meier, A., Evans, R., & Erickson, J. I. (2021). Strengthening a culture to address bullying and incivility in the care environment. *JONA: The Journal of Nursing Administration*, *51*(10), 475-477.

Mohr, D. C., Dade, S. N., Yanchus, N. J., Bell, C. A., Sullivan, S. C., & Osatuke, K. Workplace Bullying Experiences of Nurses From Diverse Sexual Orientation and Gender Identity Groups. *Journal of Advanced Nursing*.

Ota, M., Lam, L., Gilbert, J., & Hills, D. (2022). Nurse leadership in promoting and supporting civility in health care settings: a scoping review. *Journal of Nursing Management*, *30*(8), 4221-4233.

Parsons, K., Gaudine, A., Patrick, L., & Busby, L. (2022). Nurse leaders' experiences of upwards violence in the workplace: a qualitative systematic review. *JBI evidence synthesis*, 20(5), 1243-1274.

Powell, S. K., & Fink-Samnick, E. (2022). Workplace violence and bullying: you can survive. *Professional case management*, *27*(4), 167-168.

Rosi, I. M., Contiguglia, A., Millama, K. R., & Rancati, S. (2020). Newly graduated nurses' experiences of horizontal violence. *Nursing ethics*, *27*(7), 1556-1568.

Schoville, R., & Aebersold, M. (2020). How workplace bullying and incivility impacts patient safety: A qualitative simulation study using BSN students. *Clinical Simulation in Nursing*, *45*, 16-23.

Singh, A., Ranjan, P., Kaur, T., Sarkar, S., Upadhyay, A. D., Baitha, U., ... & Jorwal, P. (2021). Development and validation of a comprehensive questionnaire to assess interpersonal discord (bullying, harassment, and discrimination) at the workplace in a healthcare setting. *Cureus*, *13*(10).

Siller, D. H., Beck-Rabanser, C., Hochleitner, P. D. M., & Exenberger, D. S. (2021). "Not a Woman-Question, But a Power-Question": A Qualitative Study of Third Parties on Psychological Violence in Academic Medicine. *Workplace Health & Safety*, *69*(1), 41-49.

Teo, S. T., Nguyen, D., Trevelyan, F., Lamm, F., & Boocock, M. (2021). Workplace bullying, psychological hardiness, and accidents and injuries in nursing: A moderated mediation model. *PLoS one*, *16*(1), e0244426.

Törnroos, M., Salin, D., & Magnusson Hanson, L. (2020). High-involvement work practices and conflict management procedures as moderators of the workplace bullying–wellbeing relationship. *Work & Stress*, *34*(4), 386-405.

Vessey, J. A., & Williams, L. (2021). Addressing bullying and lateral violence in the workplace: A quality improvement initiative. *Journal of nursing care quality*, *36*(1), 20-24.

Shorey, S., & Wong, P. Z. E. (2021). A qualitative systematic review on nurses' experiences of workplace bullying and implications for nursing practice. *Journal of Advanced Nursing*, 77(11), 4306-4320.

## The American Medical Association (AMA)

- Bullying in the Health Care Workplace <u>https://www.ama-assn.org/practice-management/physician-health/bullying-health-care-workplace-guide-prevention-mitigation</u>
- Workplace Aggression Guide <u>https://www.ama-assn.org/practice-management/physician-health/why-bullying-happens-health-care-and-how-stop-it</u>

## **American Nurses Association**

Incivility and Bullying. <a href="https://www.nursingworld.org/practice-policy/work-environment/violence-incivility-bullying/">https://www.nursingworld.org/practice-policy/work-environment/violence-incivility-bullying/</a>

## The Joint Commission

 Quick Safety 24: Bullying has no place in health care (Updated June 2021) <a href="https://www.jointcommission.org/resources/news-and-multimedia/newsletters/newsletters/quick-safety/quick-safety-issue-24-bullying-has-no-place-in-health-care/bullying-has-no-place-in-health-care/">https://www.jointcommission.org/resources/news-and-multimedia/newsletters/newsletters/quick-safety/quick-safety-issue-24-bullying-has-no-place-in-health-care/</a>

## Vanderbilt Center for Patient and Professional Advocacy.

https://www.vumc.org/patient-professional-advocacy/vumc-cppa-home

## Workplace Bullying Institute. https://workplacebullying.org/

## Webinars/Conference Sessions

 Bullying in Healthcare' Panel presentation at the Workplace Aggression: Preventing relational aggression and bullying - a deeper dive. 2020 Virtual Spring Symposium <u>Oregon Institute of Occupational Health Sciences (OIOHS)</u>, May 2020. Recordings available at <u>https://www.ohsu.edu/oregon-institute-occupational-health-sciences/workplaceaggression-preventing-relational-aggression</u>

## **Dementia Related**

Grey, T., Xidous, D., Kennelly, S., Mahon, S., Mannion, V., de Freine, P., ... & O'Neill, D. (2018). Dementia Friendly Hospitals from a Universal Design Approach-Design Guidelines 2018. <u>https://dementia.ie/wp-content/uploads/2018/01/UD-DFH-Guidelines-2018-Full-doc-lw-res-compressed-A1.pdf</u>

Handley, M., Bunn, F., & Goodman, C. (2019). Supporting general hospital staff to provide dementia sensitive care: A realist evaluation. *International journal of nursing studies*, *96*, 61-71.

Karrer, M., Schnelli, A., Zeller, A., & Mayer, H. (2021). A systematic review of interventions to improve acute hospital care for people with dementia. *Geriatric Nursing*, *42*(3), 657-673.

Larson, E. B., & Stroud, C. (2021). Meeting the challenge of caring for persons living with dementia and their care partners and caregivers: A report from the National Academies of Sciences, Engineering, and Medicine. *Jama*, *325*(18), 1831-1832.

Røsvik, J., & Rokstad, A. M. M. (2020). What are the needs of people with dementia in acute hospital settings, and what interventions are made to meet these needs? A systematic integrative review of the literature. *BMC Health Services Research*, 20, 1-20.

Sheikh, A. B., Javed, N., Ijaz, Z., Leyba, K., Barrett, E., & Dunn, A. (2022). Easing dementia caregiver burden, addressing interpersonal violence. *Journal of family practice*, 71(1), E1-E8.

Ye, H. M. Y., Xiao, L. D., Ullah, S., & Chang, R. H. C. (2024). Hospital nurses perceived challenges and opportunities in the care of people with dementia: A mixed-methods systematic review. *Journal of Clinical Nursing*. <u>https://onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/10.1111/jocn.17144</u>

## Associations & Training Resources

- Alzheimer's Association Health Systems and Medical Professionals <u>https://www.alz.org/professionals/health-systems-medical-professionals</u>
- The Bureau of Health Workforce (BHW) Train Health Care Workers About Dementia <u>https://bhw.hrsa.gov/alzheimers-dementia-training</u>
- Guiding an Improved Dementia Experience (GUIDE) Model <u>https://www.cms.gov/priorities/innovation/innovation-models/guide</u>
- Resources for Health Care Providers: Alzheimer's and Related Dementias <u>https://www.alzheimers.gov/professionals/health-care-providers</u>
- Teepa Snow <a href="https://teepasnow.com/">https://teepasnow.com/</a>
- UC SF Weill Institute for Neurosciences Memory and Aging Center. Tips for Hospitalization
   <a href="https://memory.ucsf.edu/treatments-stays/surgery-hospitalization/tips-hospitalization">https://memory.ucsf.edu/treatments-stays/surgery-hospitalization/tips-hospitalization</a>
- Working With Dementia: Safe Work Practices for Caregivers Videos and Video Discussion Guide <u>https://www.worksafebc.com/en/resources/health-safety/books-guides/working-with-dementia-safe-work-practices-for-caregivers?lang=en</u>

# **WPV and Covid**

Byon, H. D., Sagherian, K., Kim, Y., Lipscomb, J., Crandall, M., & Steege, L. (2021). Nurses' experience with type II workplace violence and underreporting during the COVID-19 pandemic. *Workplace Health & Safety*, 21650799211031233.

Clari, M., Luciani, M., Conti, A., Sciannameo, V., Berchialla, P., Di Giulio, P., Campagna, S., & Dimonte, V. (2021). The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on nursing care: A cross-sectional survey-based study. *Journal of Personalized Medicine*, *11*(10), 945. https://doi.org/10.3390/jpm11100945

Chirico, F., Afolabi, A. A., Ilesanmi, O. S., Nucera, G., Ferrari, G., Szarpak, L., ... & Magnavita, N. (2022). Workplace violence against healthcare workers during the COVID-19 pandemic: a systematic review. *J Health Soc Sci*, 7(1), 14-35.

Devi, S. (2020). COVID-19 exacerbates violence against health workers. *The Lancet*, 396(10252), 658.

Devnani, M. (2021). Covid-19 and laws for workplace violence in healthcare. *bmj*, 375. March 2025

Galanis, P., Vraka, I., Fragkou, D., Bilali, A., & Kaitelidou, D. (2021). Nurses' burnout and associated risk factors during the COVID-pandemic: A systematic review and meta-analysis. *Journal of Advanced Nursing*, *77*(8), 3286–3302. https://doi.org/10.1111/jan.14839

Hendrickson, R. C., Slevin, R. A., Hoerster, K. D., Chang, B. P., Sano, E., McCall, C. A., ... & Raskind, M. A. (2022). The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on mental health, occupational functioning, and professional retention among health care workers and first responders. *Journal of general internal medicine*, *37*(2), 397-408.

Jacobi, D., & Ide, T. (2023). Collective Violence against Health Workers in the Context of the COVID-19 Pandemic. *Nursing Reports*, *13*(2), 902-912.

Odes, R., Lee, S. J., Hong, O., & Jun, J. (2023). The effect of COVID-19 on workplace violence in California's hospitals: An interrupted time series analysis. *Journal of Advanced Nursing*, Jun;79(6):2337-2347

Ramzi, Z. S., Fatah, P. W., & Dalvandi, A. (2022). Prevalence of workplace violence against healthcare workers during the COVID-19 pandemic: a systematic review and meta-analysis. *Frontiers in psychology*, *13*. https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC9195416/pdf/fpsyg-13-896156.pdf

Zhang, S., Zhao, Z., Zhang, H., Zhu, Y., Xi, Z., & Xiang, K. (2023). Workplace violence against healthcare workers during the COVID-19 pandemic: a systematic review and meta-analysis. *Environmental Science and Pollution Research*, 1-15.

## International Committee of the Red Cross. (2020).

 COVID-19 and Violence Against Healthcare Safer COVID-19 Response: Checklist for Healthcare Services. The Healthcare in Danger team from the International Committee of the Red Cross published this checklist of recommendations (and links to related resources) for preventing and responding to violence against healthcare. <u>https://shop.icrc.org/covid-19-and-violence-against-health-care-safer-covid-19-response-checklist-for-health-careservices-pdf-en</u>

Larkin, H. (2021). Navigating Attacks Against Health Care Workers in the COVID-19 Era. Journal of the American Medical Association. 325(18): 1822-1824.

Roberts, J. D., & Tehrani, S. O. (2020). Environments, behaviors, and inequalities: reflecting on the impacts of the influenza and coronavirus pandemics in the United States. *International journal of environmental research and public health*, *17*(12), 4484.

# **Clinician Wellbeing**

- Institute for Healthcare Improvement (IHI) Joy in Work Series multiple resources. Available at <u>ihi.org</u>
- Balik, B., Hilton, K., White, K., & Institute for Healthcare Improvement. (2020). Conversation and action guide to support staff well-being and joy in work during and after the COVID-19 pandemic. *Institute for Health Care Improvement*.
- Centers for Disease Control and Prevention
  - Health Workers Report Harassment, Symptoms of Poor Mental Health, and Difficult Working Conditions What Employers Can Do. <u>https://www.cdc.gov/media/releases/2023/s1024-Health-Worker-Mental-Health.html#print</u>

- Health Workers Face a Mental Health Crisis. Workers Report Harassment, Burnout, and Poor Mental Health; Supportive Workplaces Can Help. CDC Vital Signs Report Oct 2023. <u>https://www.cdc.gov/vitalsigns/health-worker-mental-health/index.html</u>
- Nigam, J. A. (2023). Vital Signs: Health Worker–Perceived Working Conditions and Symptoms of Poor Mental Health—Quality of Worklife Survey, United States, 2018–2022. *MMWR. Morbidity and Mortality Weekly Report, 72.* <u>https://www.cdc.gov/mmwr/volumes/72/wr/mm7244e1.htm?s\_cid=mm7244e1\_w</u>
- Healthcare Workers and Work Stress. Health Workers Face a Mental Health Crisis. NIOSH. Last Reviewed: June 21, 2023. <u>https://www.cdc.gov/niosh/topics/healthcare/workstress.html#print</u>
- NIOSH [2024]. Impact Wellbeing<sup>™</sup> Guide: Taking action to improve healthcare worker wellbeing. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health, DHHS (NIOSH) Publication 2024-109, <u>https://doi.org/10.26616/NIOSHPUB2024109</u>.
- Suicide Prevention for Healthcare Workers. CDC Sept 2021. Posted on September 17, 2021 by Hope Tiesman, PhD; David Weissman, MD; Deborah Stone, ScD, MSW, MPH; Kristen Quinlan, PhD; and L. Casey Chosewood, MD, MPH <u>https://blogs.cdc.gov/niosh-science-blog/2021/09/17/suicide-prevention-</u> hcw/#:~:text=call%201%2D800%2D273%2D,call%209%2D1%2D1
- Resource Toolkit for the Clinician Well-Being Knowledge Hub, 2022. National Academy of Medicine https://nam.edu/resource-toolkit-clinician-well-being-knowledge-hub/
- RESILIENCY TOOLKIT. A Comprehensive Guide for Health Centers & Their Staff 2022. National Health Care for the Homeless Council (NHCHC) and STAR<sup>2</sup> Center <u>https://nhchc.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/01/Organizational-Leadership-and-Resiliency-Toolkit-2022-New.pdf</u>
- Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration(SAMHSA). SAMHSA's Concept of Trauma and Guidance for a Trauma-Informed Approach <a href="https://ncsacw.acf.hhs.gov/userfiles/files/SAMHSA\_Trauma.pdf">https://ncsacw.acf.hhs.gov/userfiles/files/SAMHSA</a> Trauma.pdf
- Stress First Aid for Health Care Workers (2020). Watson, P., & Westphal, R.J. National Center for PTSD. <u>www.ptsd.va.gov</u>
  - Stress First Aid For Heathcare Workers https://www.ptsd.va.gov/professional/treat/type/SFA/docs/SFA\_HCW\_Manual\_508.pdf
  - Stress First Aid For Heathcare Workers Workbook
     https://www.ptsd.va.gov/professional/treat/type/SFA/docs/SFA\_Workbook\_508.pdf

## Miscellaneous

Ivziku, D., Biagioli, V., Caruso, R., Lommi, M., De Benedictis, A., Gualandi, R., & Tartaglini, D. (2024). Trust in the Leader, Organizational Commitment, and Nurses' Intention to Leave—Insights from a Nationwide Study Using Structural Equation Modeling. *Nursing Reports*, *14*(2), 1452-1467.

Lisle, L., Speroni, K. G., Aroom, W., Crouch, L., & Honigsberg, H. (2020). Differences in compassion satisfaction, compassion fatigue, and work environment factors by hospital registered nurse type. *OJIN: Online Journal of Issues in Nursing*, *25*(3).

Malinowska-Lipień, I., Micek, A., Gabryś, T., Kózka, M., Gajda, K., Gniadek, A., ... & Squires, A. (2021). Nurses and physicians attitudes towards factors related to hospitalized patient safety. *PloS one*, *16*(12), e0260926.

Min, A., Kang, M., & Park, H. Global prevalence of presenteeism in the nursing workforce: A meta-analysis of 28 studies from 14 countries. *Journal of Nursing Management*.

Navarro-Carrillo, G., Torres-Marín, J., Corbacho-Lobato, J. M., & Carretero-Dios, H. (2020). The effect of humour on nursing professionals' psychological well-being goes beyond the influence of empathy: a cross-sectional study. *Scandinavian Journal of Caring Sciences*, *34*(2), 474-483.

Özkan, A. H. (2022). The effect of burnout and its dimensions on turnover intention among nurses: A meta-analytic review. *Journal of Nursing Management*, *30*(3), 660-669.

Tsolakidis, G., & Vasiliki Diamantidou, M. D. (2022). Nursing Staff Burnout: A Critical Review of the Risk Factors. *International Journal of Caring Sciences*, *15*(1), 668-679.